
Create and execute continuing, cooperative and comprehensive regional long-range planning efforts that pro-
actively drive transportation decisions to improve safety, connectivity, economic development and quality of life in 

the Wilmington region. 

Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Board 

Meeting Agenda 

TO: Wilmington Urban Area MPO Board Members 
FROM: Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director 
DATE:  March 24, 2022 
SUBJECT: March 30th meeting 

A meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area MPO Board will be held on Wednesday, March 30, 2022, at 3 
pm. The meeting will be held in the 6th Floor Conference Room at 320 Chestnut Street downtown 
Wilmington. The public may attend the meeting in person.  Due to COVID-19, pursuant to N.C.G.S. sec. 
166A-19.24 the public and Board Members may also attend the meeting remotely as follows:   

The meeting will be simultaneously streamed live online so that simultaneous live audio, and video, if any, 
of the meeting is available to the public at the following URL:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83969107282?pwd=QnIxYWpHNXhlMHlyek5JQXhHbDh1Zz09 

The public may also dial in and listen to the simultaneous live audio of the remote meeting at the following 
dial in number: 646 558 8656 or 301 715 8592. And when prompted, enter:  
Meeting ID: 839 6910 7282 
Passcode: 920663 

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone. 

The following is the agenda for the meeting: 
1) Call to Order
2) Conflict of Interest Statement
3) Approval of Board Member Excused Absences
4) Approval of the Agenda
5) Public Comment Period

Persons wishing to submit a public comment to be shared during the MPO Board meeting may
do so by 5 pm on March 29, 2022, by calling (910) 341-3258 to leave a message or by e-
mailing comments to wmpo@wilmingtonnc.gov. The public voicemails will be played aloud
and the public comment e-mails will be read aloud by a staff member during the meeting. Per
the adopted Public Participation Plan, public comments shall be limited to 3 minutes.

6) Presentation

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83969107282?pwd=QnIxYWpHNXhlMHlyek5JQXhHbDh1Zz09
mailto:wmpo@wilmingtonnc.gov


a. 2022 Wilmington Urban Area MPO Compensation Study Results- Becky Drozdz,
Catapult (p. 4-26)

7) Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes from February 23, 0222 (p. 27-35)
b. Resolution approving 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Amendments #22-1 and #22-2 
c. Resolution approving 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Administrative Modification #22-2
d. Resolution approving the FY 23 Unified Planning Work Program for the 

Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (p. 42-60)
e. Resolution certifying the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 

Organization’s Transportation Planning Process (p. 61)
f. Resolution supporting the City of Wilmington’s application for the North Carolina 

Emergency Management’s Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund Grant
g. Resolution supporting Pender County’s application for the North Carolina 

Emergency Management’s Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund Grant
8) Regular Agenda

a. Resolution approving Amendment #3 to the FY 22 Unified Planning Work 
Program (p. 64-70)

9) Discussion
a. 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program Administrative 

Modifications #22-3 (p. 71-74)
b. Wilmington Multi-modal Transportation Center Phase 1B (p. 75-76)
c. 2022 Legislative Agenda (p. 77-79)
d. 2022 NCAMPO Conference Moderators

10) Updates
a. Wilmington Urban Area MPO (p. 80-86)
b. Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority (p. 87-88)
c. NCDOT Division (p. 89-91)
d. NCDOT Transportation Planning Division (p. 92-93)

11) Announcements
a. Wilmington MPO Bike/Pedestrian Committee- April 12th

b. NC State Ethics Forms Due- April 15th

c. NC Association of MPOs 2022 Conference- April 20th -22nd

12) Next meeting – April 27, 2022

Attachments 
• 2022Wilmington Urban Area MPO Compensation Analysis
• 2022 WMPO Sponsored Compensation Survey Report
• MPO Board Meeting Minutes- February 23, 2022
• Proposed 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Amendments #22-1
• Proposed 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Amendments #22-2
• Resolution approving 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Amendments #22-1 and #22-2
• Proposed 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Administrative Modification #22-2
• Resolution approving 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Administrative Modification #22-2
• Draft FY 23 Unified Planning Work Program
• Resolution approving the FY 23 Unified Planning Work Program for the Wilmington Urban Area

Metropolitan Planning Organization
• Resolution certifying the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s Transportation

Planning Process
• Resolution supporting the City of Wilmington’s application for the North Carolina Emergency Management’s

Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund Grant
• Resolution supporting Pender County’s application for the North Carolina Emergency Management’s

Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund Grant
• Proposed Amendment #3 to the FY 22 Unified Planning Work Program

2

(p. 36-38)
(p. 39-41)

(p. 62)

(p. 63)



• Resolution approving Amendment #3 to the FY 22 Unified Planning Work Program
• Proposed 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program Administrative Modifications #22-3
• Wilmington Multi-modal Transportation Center Phase 1B Memorandum
• Draft 2022 Legislative Agenda
• Draft 2022 Legislative Agenda TCC Suggestions/Requests Memorandum
• Wilmington Urban Area MPO Update (March)
• Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority Update (March)
• NCDOT Division Project Update (March)
• NCDOT Transportation Planning Division Project Update (March)

3



2022 Compensation Analysis 
Wilmington MPO 

Presented by: 

Becky Drozdz, MBA, CCP, SPHR, SHRM-SCP 
March 2022 

4



2022 Compensation Analysis 
Wilmington MPO 

Table of Contents 

Market Pricing Methodology 1 
Market Pricing Recommendations 2 
Market Analysis Summary 3 
External Analysis 4 
Proposed Grades 5 
Internal Analysis 6 
Consultant Qualifications 7 

5



Wilmington MPO 
Market Pricing Methodology 

March 2022 

Wilmington MPO retained Catapult to assess the reasonableness and competitiveness of compensation 
for the organization.  This report details the results of this assessment and is being presented to Mike 
Kozlosky, Executive Director. 

Through an understanding of the mission, operations, compensation and leadership structure, this 
assessment is based on our opinion of the data as it relates to the organization and in keeping with 
compensation “best practices”. 

JOB MATCHING AND SURVEY RESOURCES 

The jobs selected for this project were matched to the benchmark survey descriptions based on current 
roles and responsibilities, not on job title.  

There were 9 job titles and 10 employees included in the study. Wage information was provided for 
approximately 100% of the jobs.  All jobs were matched to at least one market resource.   

Whenever possible, market research was conducted specific to the Wilmington, NC area and city support 
services, public administration, or all industries, for all jobs included in this study.  Scope data was 
reviewed at $5M when applicable. 

Median data points were used in the market analysis.  Where there was more than one data source, 
market data were blended to create a single market data point.  The computed single market data point, 
named “market average”, gives equal weight to each survey source.   

Each survey source represents benchmark salaries at a single point in time, referred to as the effective 
date.  An effective date of March 2022 was used in this analysis.  Data were adjusted or “aged” to account 
for salary changes that have occurred since the effective date of the survey.  An age factor of 3.1% was 
used to age the data. The age factor was determined from several reliable published sources for salary 
pay adjustment forecasts. Therefore, the final rates shown reflect current market rates. 

A list of market surveys used for external market analysis is shown below. 

 WMPO Sponsored Survey – Data from 11 similar planning organizations was collected and tabulated 
for this study. 

 Catapult – These surveys are compiled using national & local information as a part of the Employers 
Association of America.  Information is sorted by Company size, Geographic area, and Industry type. 

 Economic Research Institute – This salary database is compiled from numerous primary sources of 
data from survey firms throughout the U.S.  The data represent multiple industries that vary by 
business, sales volume, and geographic area.   

 CompAnalyst – This survey was a product of IBM, Kenexa as of 2016; the survey was repurchased by 
the founders of Salary.com and is populated with organizations data.  The survey is an on-demand 
salary database for businesses representing 700,000 participating subscribers and 10,000,000 
employees.   

1 6



Wilmington MPO 
Market Pricing Recommendations 

March 2022 

Compensation Market Pricing Study 
The goal of WMPO is to be competitive with the market in order to attract and retain employees.  The 
market average represents a fully competent employee.  When matching the market, the market average 
should align with the wage and salary scale midpoint.  Based on the market data, there are several 
recommended job reclassifications. 

Title Current Grade 
Proposed 

Grade 

Associate Transportation Planner E4 E5 

Engineering Associate E4 E5 

GIS Analyst E4 E5 

MPO Deputy Director E8 E9 

MPO Executive Director E9 E13 

Traffic Counter N1 N6 

Transportation Demand Management Coordinator (Associate Planner) E4 E5 

Transportation Planning Engineer E8 E9 

Employee compensation was evaluated against the pay ranges by using a compa/ratio, or a comparison 
of their salary to the market average/range midpoint.  A compa/ratio of .8 – 1.2 is considered competitive 
with the market, or “going rate.”   

Employees Paid Below Grade Minimum 
With the recommended grade reclassifications, there are no employees paid below the grade minimum. 

Employees Paid Over Grade Maximum 
With the recommended grade reclassifications, there are no employees paid over the grade maximum. 

Future Compensation Actions 
Market price new jobs and “hot jobs” as needed.  “Hot jobs” are positions of high turnover or issues with 
current compensation. 

Collect annual compensation trends and forecasts for both merit increases and salary structure 
movement.  Organizations reported a base pay increase of 3.1% (including those organizations giving 0%) 
and 3.6% (excluding 0%) across all employees for 2021 and a projected increase of 2.7% (including 0%) 
and 3.2% (excluding 0%) across all employees for 2022. Contact Catapult for future guidance on merit and 
salary structure movement. 

Executives report talent acquisition (61%) and talent retention (52%) as the greatest challenges to 
business growth, per the 2022 Catapult Business Trends Survey.  Adjusting pay ranges upward, focusing 
on training and development, and focusing on retention of existing staff will be used to overcome 
challenges.  Implementing the recommended job reclassifications will help Wilmington MPO  make 
informed decisions to attract and retain employees. 

2 7



P
ro

je
ct Title

 M
arke

t A
ve

rage
 

Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 Su
rve

y
C

atap
u

lt
Eco

n
o

m
ic R

e
se

arch
 

In
stitu

te
C

o
m

p
A

n
alyst

A
d

m
in

istrative Su
p

p
o

rt Sp
ecialist

$
4

4
,4

8
9

$
4

5
,4

8
4

$
4

1
,7

9
2

$
4

5
,0

7
8

$
4

5
,6

0
0

A
sso

ciate Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

er
$

6
1

,2
0

5
$

5
7

,3
6

7
$

6
1

,7
1

3
$

6
4

,5
3

5
N

/A

En
gin

eerin
g A

sso
ciate

$
6

4
,3

7
7

$
5

2
,2

0
8

$
7

4
,4

5
8

$
7

4
,8

4
3

$
5

6
,0

0
0

G
IS A

n
alyst

$
6

5
,2

1
3

$
6

5
,3

1
0

N
/A

$
6

6
,6

2
9

$
6

3
,7

0
0

M
P

O
 D

ep
u

ty D
irecto

r
$

9
4

,8
4

8
$

9
6

,1
1

7
N

/A
$

9
3

,0
2

7
$

9
5

,4
0

0

M
P

O
 Execu

tive D
irecto

r
$

1
2

3
,6

1
0

$
1

2
4

,7
5

0
$

1
1

3
,8

8
6

$
1

1
5

,1
0

5
$

1
4

0
,7

0
0

Sr. A
cco

u
n

tan
t

$
7

3
,4

1
1

$
6

4
,9

8
4

$
7

1
,4

6
2

$
7

8
,8

0
0

$
7

8
,4

0
0

Traffic C
o

u
n

ter
$

5
5

,8
6

5
$

5
5

,7
3

0
N

/A
N

/A
$

5
6

,0
0

0

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 D

em
an

d
 M

an
agem

en
t C

o
o

rd
in

ato
r (A

sso
ciate P

lan
n

er)
$

6
1

,2
0

5
$

5
7

,3
6

7
$

6
1

,7
1

3
$

6
4

,5
3

5
N

/A

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

in
g En

gin
eer

$
9

4
,6

2
4

$
9

4
,0

5
1

$
9

0
,8

3
3

$
1

0
0

,6
1

2
$

9
3

,0
0

0

M
arket A

n
alysis Su

m
m

ary
3 

8



Em
p

lo
ye

e
P

ro
je

ct Title
A

n
n

u
alize

d
 Salary

A
ve

rage
 P

ay b
y

Jo
b

 M
arke

t A
ve

rage
 

 Em
p

lo
ye

e
 

C
o

m
p

a/R
atio

 to
 

M
arke

t A
ve

rage
 

Jo
b

 C
o

m
p

a/R
atio

 

to
 M

arke
t 

A
ve

rage

Tracy M
an

n
in

g
A

d
m

in
istrative Su

p
p

o
rt Sp

ecialist
$

4
9

,4
2

0
.8

0
$

4
9

,4
2

1
$

4
4

,4
8

9
1

.1
1

1
.1

1

V
acan

t
A

sso
ciate Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
er

$
5

3
,4

1
5

.4
4

$
6

0
,1

4
2

$
6

1
,2

0
5

0
.8

7
0

.9
8

R
ach

el M
cIn

tyre
A

sso
ciate Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
er

$
5

7
,2

0
1

.8
2

$
6

0
,1

4
2

$
6

1
,2

0
5

0
.9

3
0

.9
8

B
ill M

cD
o

w
A

sso
ciate Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
er

$
6

9
,8

1
0

.0
0

$
6

0
,1

4
2

$
6

1
,2

0
5

1
.1

4
0

.9
8

Jam
ar Jo

h
n

so
n

En
gin

eerin
g A

sso
ciate

$
5

4
,0

0
0

.1
8

$
5

4
,0

0
0

$
6

4
,3

7
7

0
.8

4
0

.8
4

V
acan

t
G

IS A
n

alyst
$

5
5

,2
5

2
.6

0
$

5
5

,2
5

3
$

6
5

,2
1

3
0

.8
5

0
.8

5

A
b

b
y Lo

ren
zo

M
P

O
 D

ep
u

ty D
irecto

r
$

8
1

,1
4

4
.7

0
$

8
1

,1
4

5
$

9
4

,8
4

8
0

.8
6

0
.8

6

M
ike K

o
zlo

sky
M

P
O

 Execu
tive D

irecto
r

$
1

1
0

,8
6

4
.0

0
$

1
1

0
,8

6
4

$
1

2
3

,6
1

0
0

.9
0

0
.9

0

R
egin

a H
o

p
kin

s
Sr. A

cco
u

n
tan

t
$

5
9

,4
8

6
.1

8
$

5
9

,4
8

6
$

7
3

,4
1

1
0

.8
1

0
.8

1

G
reg Lau

gh
ter

Traffic C
o

u
n

ter
$

4
2

,4
3

2
.0

0
$

4
2

,4
3

2
$

5
5

,8
6

5
0

.7
6

0
.7

6

N
Ick C

an
n

o
n

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 D

em
an

d
 M

an
agem

en
t C

o
o

rd
in

ato
r (A

sso
ciate P

lan
n

er)
$

5
3

,9
0

6
.3

2
$

5
3

,9
0

6
$

6
1

,2
0

5
0

.8
8

0
.8

8

Sco
tt Jam

es
Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
in

g En
gin

eer
$

9
8

,6
4

0
.1

0
$

9
8

,6
4

0
$

9
4

,6
2

4
1

.0
4

1
.0

4

Extern
al A

n
alysis

4 

9



Title
M

a
rke

t A
ve

rage
C

u
rre

n
t G

rad
e

C
u

rre
n

t 

M
id

p
o

in
t

M
a

rke
t to

 M
id

 

C
o

m
p

a/R
a

tio
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 G

rad
e

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 

M
id

p
o

in
t

M
a

rke
t to

 M
id

 

C
o

m
p

a/R
a

tio

A
d

m
in

istrative Su
p

p
o

rt Sp
ecialist

$
44

,4
89

N
4

$
43

,8
67

1
.0

1
N

4
$

43
,8

67
1

.0
1

A
sso

ciate Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

e
r

$
61

,2
05

E4
$

58
,1

88
1

.0
5

E5
$

63
,9

60
0

.9
6

En
gin

eerin
g A

sso
ciate

$
64

,3
77

E4
$

58
,1

88
1

.1
1

E5
$

63
,9

60
1

.0
1

G
IS A

n
alyst

$
65

,2
13

E4
$

58
,1

88
1

.1
2

E5
$

63
,9

60
1

.0
2

M
P

O
 D

ep
u

ty D
irecto

r
$

94
,8

48
E8

$
85

,1
50

1
.1

1
E9

$
93

,6
78

1
.0

1

M
P

O
 Execu

tive D
irecto

r
$

12
3,61

0
E9

$
93

,6
78

1
.3

2
E1

3
$

12
6,62

0
0

.9
8

Sr. A
cco

u
n

tan
t

$
73

,4
11

E6
$

70
,3

82
1

.0
4

E6
$

70
,3

82
1

.0
4

Traffic C
o

u
n

te
r

$
55

,8
65

N
1

$
32

,9
26

1
.7

0
N

6
$

53
,0

82
1

.0
5

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 D

em
an

d
 M

an
age

m
e

n
t C

o
o

rd
in

ato
r (A

sso
ciate P

lan
n

er)
$

61
,2

05
E4

$
58

,1
88

1
.0

5
E5

$
63

,9
60

0
.9

6

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

in
g En

gin
eer

$
94

,6
24

E8
$

85
,1

50
1

.1
1

E9
$

93
,6

78
1

.0
1

P
ro

p
o

sed
 G

rad
e

s

5 

10



Em
p

lo
ye

e
Ti tle

A
n

n
u

alize
d

 Salary
C

u
rre

n
t G

rad
e

C
u

rre
n

t M
id

p
o

in
t

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 to

 

C
u

rre
n

t M
id

 

C
o

m
p

a/R
atio

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 G
rad

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

M
id

p
o

in
t

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 to

 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
id

 

C
o

m
p

a/R
atio

Tracy M
an

n
in

g
A

d
m

in
istrative Su

p
p

o
rt Sp

ecialist
$

4
9

,4
2

0
.8

0
N

4
$

4
3

,8
6

7
1

.1
3

N
4

$
4

3
,8

6
7

1
.1

3

V
acan

t
A

sso
ciate Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
er

$
5

3
,4

1
5

.4
4

E4
$

5
8

,1
8

8
0

.9
2

E5
$

6
3

,9
6

0
0

.8
4

R
ach

el M
cIn

tyre
A

sso
ciate Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
er

$
5

7
,2

0
1

.8
2

E4
$

5
8

,1
8

8
0

.9
8

E5
$

6
3

,9
6

0
0

.8
9

B
ill M

cD
o

w
A

sso
ciate Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
er

$
6

9
,8

1
0

.0
0

E4
$

5
8

,1
8

8
1

.2
0

E5
$

6
3

,9
6

0
1

.0
9

Jam
ar Jo

h
n

so
n

En
gin

eerin
g A

sso
ciate

$
5

4
,0

0
0

.1
8

E4
$

5
8

,1
8

8
0

.9
3

E5
$

6
3

,9
6

0
0

.8
4

V
acan

t
G

IS A
n

alyst
$

5
5

,2
5

2
.6

0
E4

$
5

8
,1

8
8

0
.9

5
E5

$
6

3
,9

6
0

0
.8

6

A
b

b
y Lo

ren
zo

M
P

O
 D

ep
u

ty D
irecto

r
$

8
1

,1
4

4
.7

0
E8

$
8

5
,1

5
0

0
.9

5
E9

$
9

3
,6

7
8

0
.8

7

M
ike K

o
zlo

sky
M

P
O

 Execu
tive D

irecto
r

$
1

1
0

,8
6

4
.0

0
E9

$
9

3
,6

7
8

1
.1

8
E1

3
$

1
2

6
,6

2
0

0
.8

8

R
egin

a H
o

p
kin

s
Sr. A

cco
u

n
tan

t
$

5
9

,4
8

6
.1

8
E6

$
7

0
,3

8
2

0
.8

5
E6

$
7

0
,3

8
2

0
.8

5

G
reg Lau

gh
ter

Traffic C
o

u
n

ter
$

4
2

,4
3

2
.0

0
N

1
$

3
2

,9
2

6
1

.2
9

N
6

$
5

3
,0

8
2

0
.8

0

N
Ick C

an
n

o
n

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 D

em
an

d
 M

an
agem

en
t C

o
o

rd
in

ato
r (A

sso
ciate P

lan
n

er)
$

5
3

,9
0

6
.3

2
E4

$
5

8
,1

8
8

0
.9

3
E5

$
6

3
,9

6
0

0
.8

4

Sco
tt Jam

es
Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 P
lan

n
in

g En
gin

eer
$

9
8

,6
4

0
.1

0
E8

$
8

5
,1

5
0

1
.1

6
E9

$
9

3
,6

7
8

1
.0

5

C
u

rre
n

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d

In
tern

al A
n

alysis

6 

11



3020 W. Arrowood Road  .  Charlotte, NC  28273  .  (704-522-8011)  .  www.letscatapult.org 

Becky Drozdz, MBA, CCP, SPHR, SHRM-SCP 
HR Advisor, Compensation Lead 

Becky Drozdz is the HR Advisor, Compensation Lead for Catapult.  From 
our locations in Raleigh, Charlotte and High Point, North Carolina, we 
serve over 2200 member organizations across the state. Managing 
challenging workplace issues, ensuring HR compliance and solving 
complicated employment situations can be demanding. For more than 60 
years, we have been the go-to-resource for employers seeking practical 
solutions to help build engaged, well-managed and low-risk workplaces 
through human resources, employment law and management advice, HR 

consulting, training, survey data and public policy advocacy. 

Becky is primarily responsible for advising companies in the areas of compensation and 
benchmark data, and tailoring compensation consulting services to meet the needs of the 
member.  This includes, but is not limited to, assessment or creation of salary structures; job 
analysis; and FLSA guidance. 

Becky earned her Master of Business Administration from Marymount University and her 
Bachelor of Fine Arts from the University of Illinois.  She has experience in the areas of 
compensation, job analysis, organizational communications, recruitment and retention, and 
employee relations.  Becky is also a Certified Compensation Professional (CCP), certified 
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR) and SHRM Senior Certified Professional 
(SHRM-SCP). 

7 
12



2022 WMPO Sponsored Compensation 
Survey Report  

13



Table of Contents 

Participating Organizations 1 

Introduction 2 

Job Title 

Administrative Support Specialist 4 

Associate Transportation Planner 5 

Engineering Associate 6 

GIS Analyst 7 

MPO Deputy Director 8 

MPO Executive Director 9 

Sr. Accountant 10 

Traffic Counter 11 

Transportation Planning Engineer 12 

14



Participating Organizations 

Charleston Area Transportation Study (CHATS) 
Charlotte Regional Transportation Planning Organization 
City of Chattanooga 
City of Greensboro 
DCHC MPO 
Emerald Coast Regional Council 
FAMPO 
NC CAMPO 
Waccamaw Regional Council of Governments 
Western Piedmont Council of Governments 
Wilmington MPO 

Although data represents 11 entities, not all were able to provide compensation data for 
all jobs. 

1 15



Introduction 

1. Policies

1.1  Use of Surveys 
All surveys produced by Catapult are most effectively used when employed as a guide for management, 
together with other data, to determine a company’s position and its alternatives.  Survey users should not 
attempt to use survey results and summaries as absolute standards.  Any survey data should be used in 
advance of readjustments of rates, schedules, or policies.   

1.2  Survey Administrator 
Any questions regarding this survey should be directed to: 

Becky Drozdz, MBA, CCP, SPHR, SHRM-SCP 
Catapult 
3020 West Arrowood Road 
Charlotte, NC 28273 
www.letscatapult.org 
(704) 522-8011

2. Survey Process

2.1  Effective Date 
The effective date of the survey is February 1, 2022.  Data in this survey should be aged according to this 
effective date. 

2.2  Job Descriptions 
This survey is intended to be a benchmark survey of selected job types.  Most companies will have 
variations of the job titles in this report.  Therefore, users of this report should read each job description 
carefully to effectively select appropriate matches. 

3. Notes

3.1  Statistical Parameters 

( a ).  There must be at least three companies before an average, weighted average or median can be 
calculated.  For data breakouts with less than these parameters, no line of data will be reported.   

( b ).  There must be at least five companies before the first and third quartile statistics can be calculated. 
There must be at least five companies/five employees before the two extreme statistics can be calculated.  
For statistical calculations with less than these parameters, a * will be reported. 

2 16

http://www.employersassoc.com/


4. Definitions

4.1  Companies 
The total number of organizations/companies providing data for the job. 

4.2  Employees 
The total number of employees for which compensation data are reported. 

4.3  Average 
Average base pay is provided with each displayed data cut.  It represents the simple average of reported pay 
rates, where each pay rate is counted equally.  It is found by summing the pay rates provided for a given job 
and dividing by the number of reporting companies.  Average base pay does not take into account the 
number of employees in the position.  Given that all pay rates are counted equally, the simple average is 
influenced by extreme values. 

4.4  Weighted Average 
Weighted average is provided with each displayed data cut.  Weighted average takes into account the 
number of employees in the position; it does not treat all pay rates equally.  It is a truer measure, therefore, 
for determining the closest to market pay rate. Larger employee counts have more influence, or weight, 
than smaller employee counts.  Thus the weighted average allows a more comprehensive perspective that 
goes beyond the stand-alone pay rate. 

Weighted average takes into account the number of employees associated with each pay rate for a given 
job and the total number of employees.  It is found by multiplying each pay rate by the associated employee 
count.  Sum the values and divide by the total number of employees represented.   

4.5  Interquartile Ranges 
Median – Median is provided with each displayed data cut.  It is found by arranging given pay rates from 
lowest to highest.  With an odd number of pay rates, the median is the true middle point.  With an even 
number of pay rates, the median is the average of the two middle responses.  Also known as the 50th 
percentile, half of the reported pay rates are less than the median and half are greater.  The median is 
unaffected by extreme values, therefore, therefore it is a stable measure for small sample sizes and/or high 
variability across pay rates.   

Percentiles – The 25th and 75th percentiles are provided with each displayed data cut.  Percentiles represent 
positioning on the market spectrum.  A percentile denotes the numeric point at which X% of pay rates are 
below or equal, and X% of pay rates are above.  For example, the 25th percentile is where 25% of reported 
pay rates are below or equal while 75% are above.  Note for the purpose of this report, calculations of 
percentiles take into account the number of employees in the position.  

Percentiles rank the variability existing in the data, allowing them to be used as a set of market standards.  
Thus, percentiles are best used with larger sample sizes (at least 20 or more).  The more pay rates provided, 
the more useful and reliable a range comparison. 

4.6  Extremes 
The lowest and highest representative rates of pay.  10% represents that rate at which only ten percent of 
respondents currently pay a lower rate to incumbents.  90% represents that rate at which only ten percent 
of respondents pay a higher rate to incumbents. 

3 17



1
.0

1
A

d
m

in
istrative

 Su
p

p
o

rt Sp
e

cialist

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

9
9

$
46

,2
67

$
46

,2
67

$
39

,2
91

$
42

,2
90

$
45

,4
84

$
49

,5
66

$
53

,5
05

$
36

,6
97

$
57

,3
67

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 p
ro

vid
e cle

rical an
d

 ad
m

in
istrative su

p
p

o
rt to

 a C
ity d

ep
artm

en
tan

d
/o

r d
ep

artm
en

t execu
tive. Th

is is acco
m

p
lish

ed
 b

y receivin
g p

h
o

n
e calls, greetin

g 

an
d

 d
irectin

g w
alk-in

 visito
rs, creatin

g an
d

 d
istrib

u
tin

g co
rresp

o
n

d
en

ce, co
p

yin
g, faxin

g, m
akin

g travel arran
gem

en
ts, d

istrib
u

tin
g m

ail, co
m

p
letin

g rep
o

rts, m
ain

tain
in

g o
ffice su

p
p

ly 

in
ven

to
ry, co

m
p

le
tin

g d
ep

artm
en

tal p
u

rch
ase o

rd
ers, p

ro
cessin

g in
vo

ices, assistin
g w

ith
 b

u
d

get p
rep

aratio
n

, an
d

 m
ain

tain
in

g reco
rd

s an
d

 files. O
th

er d
u

ties m
o

n
ito

rin
g th

e b
u

d
get, 

keep
in

g e
m

p
lo

yees in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f w

o
rk related

 activities, assistin
g o

th
er d

ep
artm

en
ts, m

ain
tain

in
g em

p
lo

ye
e reco

rd
s, an

d
 p

ro
vid

in
g b

ack u
p

 su
p

p
o

rt fo
r o

th
er clerical staff.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

4 

18



1
.0

2
A

sso
ciate T

ra
n

sp
o

rta
tio

n
 P

lan
n

e
r

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

8
1

5
$

58
,7

40
$

57
,9

98
$

52
,0

75
$

57
,0

00
$

57
,3

67
$

60
,6

32
$

64
,9

75

$
49

,0
49

$
73

,5
96

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 p
ro

vid
e p

lan
n

in
g service

s fo
r th

e city an
d

 related
 lo

cal agen
cies. Th

is is acco
m

p
lish

ed
 b

y in
terp

retin
g an

d
 ap

p
lyin

g p
lan

s, p
o

licies, o
rd

in
an

ces, an
d

 

tech
n

ical stan
d

ard
s, in

terfacin
g w

ith
 o

u
tsid

e age
n

cies an
d

 th
e p

u
b

lic, p
ro

d
u

cin
g regu

lar rep
o

rts, rep
o

rtin
g tren

d
s, p

ro
p

o
sin

g an
d

 im
p

lem
en

tin
g p

o
licy an

d
 p

ro
ced

u
res, id

e
n

tifyin
g 

o
b

jectives an
d

 strategies fo
r lo

n
g ran

ge p
lan

s, an
d

 co
m

p
le

tin
g sp

ecial stu
d

ies as assign
ed

. O
th

er d
u

ties in
clu

d
e

 p
rep

arin
g an

d
 m

akin
g p

resen
tatio

n
s, review

in
g site p

lan
s, read

in
g 

arch
itectu

ral d
raw

in
gs, an

d
 assistin

g w
ith

 em
ergen

cy o
p

eratio
n

s.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

5 

19



1
.0

3
En

gin
e

e
rin

g A
sso

ciate

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

4
6

$
55

,3
94

$
52

,3
64

*
*

$
52

,2
08

*
*

$
44

,7
62

$
69

,8
28

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 assist th
e P

ro
ject En

gin
eer in

 th
e d

e
sign

 an
d

 co
n

stru
ctio

n
 o

f fed
erally fu

n
d

e
d

 cap
ital p

ro
jects, to

 p
ro

vid
e co

o
rd

in
atio

n
 o

f review
 o

f Traffic Im
p

act 

A
n

alysis (TIA
), to

 assist in
 th

e ad
m

in
istratio

n
 o

f th
e STG

B
/TA

P
 p

ro
gram

 an
d

 to
 p

ro
vid

e tech
n

ical su
p

p
o

rt to
 th

e Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

in
g D

ivisio
n

 an
d

 W
ilm

in
gto

n
 M

etro
p

o
litan

 P
lan

n
in

g 

O
rgan

izatio
n

 (W
M

P
O

).P
erfo

rm
s ro

u
tin

e civil/tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 en

gin
eerin

g tasks u
n

d
er th

e su
p

ervisio
n

 o
f a sen

io
r p

ro
ject en

gin
e

er, w
h

ile gain
in

g th
e skills s/h

e n
eed

s to
 lead

 an
d

 m
an

age 

p
ro

jects.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

6 

20



1
.0

4
G

IS A
n

alyst

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

7
7

$
64

,5
08

$
64

,5
08

$
52

,3
76

$
59

,7
67

$
65

,3
10

$
70

,6
75

$
75

,8
38

$
49

,7
16

$
81

,0
51

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
seo

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 m
an

age ge
o

sp
atio

n
 d

ata an
d

 in
fo

rm
atio

n
.  A

 G
IS A

n
alyst m

ay b
e assin

gn
ed

 to
 a d

ep
artm

en
t, o

r d
ivisio

n
 an

d
 co

o
rd

in
ates G

IS d
ata o

r in
fo

rm
atio

n
 th

at 

m
ay h

ave sp
ecific d

e
p

artm
etn

, d
vid

iso
n

, o
r cityw

id
e

 im
p

licatio
n

s.  Th
is is acco

m
p

lish
ed

 b
y d

e
sign

in
g geo

sp
atially-en

ab
led

 d
atab

ases; p
ro

vid
ied

 G
IS su

p
p

o
rt to

 an
 assign

ed
 area; creatin

g 

rep
o

rts; p
ro

ce
ssin

g d
ata; an

d
 p

ro
d

u
cin

g m
ap

s.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

7 

21



1
.0

5
M

P
O

 D
e

p
u

ty D
ire

cto
r

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

8
8

$
92

,2
45

$
92

,2
45

$
79

,4
29

$
86

,1
12

$
96

,1
17

$
98

,9
17

$
10

3,59
8

$
73

,2
29

$
11

7,22
5

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 assist th
e W

ilm
in

gto
n

 U
rb

an
 A

rea M
etro

p
o

litan
 P

lan
n

in
g O

rgan
izatio

n
’s Execu

tive
 D

irecto
r/C

ity Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

in
g M

an
ager in

 m
an

agin
g an

d
 

carryin
g o

u
t th

e tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 p

lan
n

in
g services fo

r th
e C

ity o
f W

ilm
in

gto
n

 an
d

 su
rro

u
n

d
in

g lo
cal ju

risd
ictio

n
s an

d
 agen

cies w
ith

in
 th

e M
P

O
’s p

lan
n

in
g area. Th

is p
o

sitio
n

 p
erfo

rm
s 

sen
io

r level tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 p

lan
n

in
g as w

ell as assists th
e M

P
O

’s Execu
tive D

irecto
r/C

ity Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 P

lan
n

in
g M

an
ager w

ith
 p

ro
ject an

d
 o

rgan
izatio

n
al m

an
agem

en
t fo

r th
e 

W
ilm

in
gto

n
 U

rb
an

 A
rea M

etro
p

o
litan

 P
lan

n
in

g O
rgan

izatio
n

. Th
e p

o
sitio

n
 m

an
ages th

e fed
eral tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 req
u

irem
en

ts an
d

 co
o

rd
in

ates activities w
ith

 o
th

er M
P

O
s as w

ell as lo
cal, 

state an
d

 fed
eral e

lected
 an

d
 ap

p
o

in
ted

 o
fficials. D

u
ties in

clu
d

e o
ve

rseein
g im

p
lem

en
tatio

n
 o

f th
e D

ep
artm

en
t’s an

d
 W

ilm
in

gto
n

 U
rb

an
 A

rea M
etro

p
o

litan
 P

lan
n

in
g O

rgan
izatio

n
’s 

strategic go
als an

d
 o

b
jectives, o

verseein
g an

d
 en

su
rin

g tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 p

lan
n

in
g activities are b

ein
g co

m
p

le
ted

 to
 m

eet th
e fed

eral req
u

irem
en

ts, p
ro

je
ct m

an
agem

en
t an

d
 m

o
n

ito
rin

g 

fiscal reso
u

rces. Th
e D

e
p

u
ty D

irecto
r serves as a key ad

viso
r to

 th
e Execu

tive D
irecto

r o
n

 p
ro

je
cts an

d
 effo

rts w
ith

in
 th

e M
P

O
. Th

e D
e

p
u

ty D
irecto

r w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 assign
ed

 to
 fu

lfill th
e d

u
ties 

o
f th

e Execu
tive D

irecto
r in

 th
eir ab

sen
ce.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

8 

22



1
.0

6
M

P
O

 Exe
cu

tive
 D

ire
cto

r

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

7
7

$
12

8,06
6

$
12

8,06
6

$
10

0,16
4

$
12

2,84
8

$
12

4,75
0

$
13

3,44
9

$
15

7,86
5

$
92

,1
85

$
14

4,08
3

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 d
irect an

d
 carryin

g o
u

t th
e tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 p
lan

n
in

g service
s fo

r th
e C

ity o
f W

ilm
in

gto
n

 an
d

 su
rro

u
n

d
in

g lo
cal ju

risd
ictio

n
s an

d
 agen

cies w
ith

in
 th

e 

M
P

O
’s p

lan
n

in
g area. 

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

9 

23



1
.0

7
Sr. A

cco
u

n
tan

t

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

8
1

1
$

69
,4

14
$

65
,9

33
$

53
,2

40
$

61
,4

06
$

64
,9

84
$

71
,7

50
$

79
,3

92

$
55

,9
12

$
87

,8
55

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 su
p

p
o

rt all acco
u

n
tin

g o
p

eratio
n

s an
d

 activities an
d

 to
 co

m
p

ly w
ith

 all gran
t rep

o
rtin

g activities. Th
is is acco

m
p

lish
ed

 b
y reco

n
cilin

g acco
u

n
ts, 

p
ro

cessin
g jo

u
rn

al en
tries, p

ro
cessin

g year en
d

 clo
sin

gs, m
o

n
ito

rin
g p

ro
gram

s fo
r co

m
p

lian
ce

, m
o

n
ito

rin
g e

xp
en

d
itu

res, estab
lish

in
g p

o
licie

s an
d

 p
ro

ced
u

res, p
ro

vid
in

g fin
an

cial d
ata to

 

d
ep

artm
en

ts, assistin
g d

ep
artm

en
ts w

ith
 b

u
d

get activities, tran
sferrin

g fu
n

d
s, su

b
m

ittin
g req

u
ired

 rep
o

rts to
 vario

u
s agen

cies, an
d

 m
o

n
ito

rin
g o

th
er ch

arges. O
th

er d
u

ties in
clu

d
e

 

assistin
g w

ith
 sp

ecial p
ro

jects, an
alyzin

g ad
d

itio
n

al acco
u

n
ts, fo

recastin
g fu

tu
re reven

u
es an

d
 e

xp
en

d
itu

res, su
p

ervisin
g staff, an

d
 co

o
rd

in
atin

g d
istrib

u
tio

n
 o

f rep
o

rts.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

10 

24



1
.0

8
Tra

ffic C
o

u
n

te
r

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

3
3

$
51

,3
79

$
51

,3
79

*
*

$
55

,7
30

*
*

$
35

,0
67

$
57

,6
55

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
e p

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is p

o
sitio

n
 is to

 p
erfo

rm
 tech

n
ical w

o
rk in

 th
e co

llectio
n

 o
f traffic d

ata. D
u

ties in
clu

d
e settin

g u
p

 co
m

p
u

terized
 traffic co

u
n

tin
g eq

u
ip

m
en

t in
 o

rd
er to

 co
llect traffic d

ata 

fro
m

 th
e C

ity o
f W

ilm
in

gto
n

. D
u

ties also
 in

clu
d

e
 testin

g, an
d

 rep
lacin

g p
n

eu
m

atic h
o

ses as n
ecessary.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

11 

25



1
.0

9
Tra

n
sp

o
rta

tio
n

 P
lan

n
in

g En
gin

e
e

r

P
lan

n
in

g

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s

A
ve

rage
 B

ase
 P

a
y

W
eigh

te
d

 A
vera

ge
1

0th
2

5th
 P

e
rce

n
tile

M
e

d
ian

7
5th

 P
e

rce
n

tile
9

0th

4
4

$
95

,1
66

$
95

,1
66

*
*

$
94

,0
51

*
*

$
71

,3
71

$
11

3,85
1

2
0

2
2

 W
M

P
O

 Sp
o

n
so

re
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

satio
n

 Su
rve

y

Th
is p

o
sitio

n
 assists w

ith
 gu

id
in

g an
d

 co
o

rd
in

atin
g th

e tech
n

ical asp
ects o

f tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
 p

lan
n

in
g p

o
licie

s, p
ro

je
cts an

d
 p

ro
gram

s fo
r W

M
P

O
 an

d
 m

em
b

er ju
risd

ictio
n

s.

B
ase

 P
ay

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
in

u
m

u
m

A
ve

rage
 R

an
ge

 M
axim

u
m

12 

26



MPO Board Meeting Minutes 
6th Floor Training Conference Room, 320 Chestnut Street, Wilmington, N.C. 

Wednesday, February 23, 2022 

Members Present (in‐person) 
Neil Anderson, City of Wilmington 
Lynn Barbee, Town of Carolina Beach 
Brenda Bozeman, Town of Leland 
Mike Forte, Brunswick County 
Deb Hays, Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority  

Hank Miller, Town of Wrightsville Beach 
David Piepmeyer, Pender County 
Charlie Rivenbark, City of Wilmington 

Others Present (in‐person) 
Natalie English, Wilmington Chamber 
Abby Lorenzo, Deputy Director, WMPO  
Scott A. James, Transportation Planning Engineer 
Chad Kimes, Division Engineer, NCDOT 
Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director, WMPO 
Caitlin Marks, Planning Engineer, NCDOT 
Rachel McIntyre, WMPO Assoc. Transportation 
Planner 

Bruce Wortelman 

Members Present (remotely) 
Mike Allen, Town of Belville  
Jonathan Barfield, Jr., New Hanover County 
Eulis Willis, Town of Navassa 
Landon Zimmer, NC Board of 
Transportation 

Others Present (remotely) 
Deb LeCompte, Carolina Beach  
Amy Passaretti  
Joanna Rocco  
LB Haviland  
Marty Little, New Hanover County 
Nazia Sarder, NCDOT  
Katie Hite  
Tony Sumter  
C Hannah  
J Dayton  
Aubrey Parsley, City of Wilmington 
Marie Parker, Wave Transit  
Historic Wilmington Foundation  
Veronica Carter, Town of Leland  
Charles Bost, Town of Belville 
Johanna Still 

1) Call to Order
Chairman David Piepmeyer called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  Mr. Kozlosky called the roll, and a
quorum was present as follows:

Present: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte, Eulis Willis and Landon Zimmer.
Absent: John Ellen.

2) Conflict of Interest Statement
Chairman Piepmeyer read the conflict‐of‐interest statement. He asked if any member has a conflict of
interest with any of the items on the meeting agenda. No members reported having a conflict.

3) Approval of Board Members’ Excused Absences
Chairman Piepmeyer said that Mr. Ellen requested at the last meeting to be excused from this meeting.
Mr. Kozlosky concurred and said that no other member has requested to be excused.

Ms. Hays made a motion to excuse Mr. Ellen from the meeting, seconded by Mr. Rivenbark, and the
motion carried unanimously by roll call as follows:

27



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,  
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte, Eulis Willis and Landon Zimmer.  
Nays:  None. Excused: John Ellen. 

4) Approval of the Agenda
Mr. Forte made a motion to approve the agenda.

Vice Chair Miller requested to add a discussion item (9E) to the agenda. He said that last night the
Chamber approved a resolution urging all possible considerations for funding the replacement of the Cape
Fear Memorial Bridge, possibly to consider a similar resolution.

Mr. Rivenbark seconded the motion it carried unanimously by roll call as follows:

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte, Eulis Willis and Landon Zimmer.
Nays:  None. Excused: John Ellen.

Mr. Anderson made a motion to approve the agenda as amended, seconded by Mr. Rivenbark and the
motion carried unanimously by roll call as follows:

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte, Eulis Willis and Landon Zimmer.
Nays:  None. Excused: John Ellen.

5) Public Comment Period
Mr. Bruce Wortelman, resident of Gorman Plantation, spoke to the MPO Board and said that he has been
working with NCDOT since 2016 regarding unsafe traffic conditions in his neighborhood due to speeding
vehicles. He noted that the population growth on Middle Sound Loop Road and Military Cutoff Road
Extension have added to the problem. However, traffic studies conducted by DOT between 2019 and
2021 denied multi‐way stops and speed limit reductions.  He added that the Deputy Marshal at the New
Hanover County Fire and Rescue recently drafted a letter acknowledging the neighborhood traffic calming
endeavor, and DOT has granted a petition to capture homeowner signatures in support of the project. He
requested that the MPO investigate homeowner concerns and provide a recommendation and funding for
traffic calming measures.

Ms. Natalie English, President and CEO, Wilmington Chamber of Commerce, said that the Chamber’s
Public Policy Committee approved a resolution yesterday urging the WMPO to consider all possible
options for funding the replacement of the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge. She commented that the business
community understands that the funding for transportation infrastructure across the country is not
keeping pace with needs, even with the Infrastructure Bill that passed last year. However, the bridge is a
top priority for connecting the region as well as the state of North Carolina.

Mr. Rivenbark inquired about Mr. Wortelman’s comments. Mr. Kozlosky said that MPO staff will contact
Division 3, as this is a consideration for the Department. He noted that Mr. Wortelman expressed an
interest in adding this project to the MPO’s long‐range plan, which will be approved in November of 2025.

6) Presentation
a. North Carolina State Ports Authority Update‐ Stephanie Ayers, NC State Ports

Stephanie Ayers said she primarily deals with real estate, grants, strategic planning, and is the liaison
for inland transportation issues related to road and rail for the NC State Ports Authority, which has
seaports in Wilmington and Morehead City and an inland Port in Charlotte. She noted that the
terminal facilities serve a variety of customers with container boxes, bulk, break bulk, and roll‐on/

28



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

roll‐off commodities as well as the military. Both seaports are identified as strategic seaports, which 
of the 300 seaports in the U.S., 15 have port planning orders with the U.S. DOD to respond to the 
military as well as commercial customers. She added that the Port is strategically located on the east 
coast within 700 miles of 70% of the U.S. industrial base and, although a state agency, is a corporate 
body that pays its own salaries by the revenues it generates through moving cargo. 

Ms. Ayers said the Port of Wilmington covers about 300 acres and has a 600,000 TEU capacity. The 
TEU (Twenty Equipment Unit) represents the 20’ equivalent container box invented in North Carolina 
by Malcolm McLean, although containers seen on the highway today are double that. For comparison, 
she added that Savannah has a 3 million TEU capacity. She noted that the Port recently completed a 
project to increase its capacity for refrigerated containers. She added that the Port of Morehead City 
is at full capacity and covers about 130 acres, with an additional 150 acres on Radio Island available 
for development. Morehead City serves the same commodities as Wilmington except containers. 

Ms. Ayers pointed out that according to a NC State study produced triennially, the Port continues to 
be an important economic contributor to the state due to the jobs it generates statewide, tax 
revenues, and economic output. She noted that fiscal year ’21 ending June 30th was a record year for 
the Ports with refrigerated container volumes up 300% over a five‐year period and a 213% growth in 
intermodal rail since 2017. She added that the Port heavily focuses on growing rail and refrigerated 
container volumes.   

Ms. Ayers pointed out that the Port brings its customers the value of superior performance in its 
ability to turn around trucks and ships faster than anyone else in the U.S. She noted that the Port was 
ranked #1 by the Journal of Commerce for overall productivity in 2019.  

Ms. Ayers said that over the summer, the Port completed a new strategic plan for it to be the 
preferred east coast port based upon value brought to stakeholders. The five‐year plan is to grow 
containers by 50% and breakbulk customers (anything that can be palletized). Highlights include the 
completion of the container yard plan and Wilmington harbor navigation project, focused growth of 
refrigerated containers and intermodal rail cargo, and investments on and off terminal to support 
new businesses. The Port continues to work with economic development partners, making 
improvements in rail and highway connectivity outside of the Port and coordinating with sister 
agencies on targeted segments around the state.  

Ms. Ayers said capital improvements include the $256 million infrastructure plan, which is about to be 
completed. She noted that the plan includes a birth expansion, raising the powerlines to 250’, three 
Neo‐Panamax cranes, turning basin expansion, a container yard expansion master plan near 
completion, and a conditionally authorized Wilmington harbor navigation project. She added that the 
harbor project takes two acts of U.S. Congress – one to authorize the project, which had been 
secured, and the other to make an appropriation for it. She reported that the General Assembly 
recently set aside the required match for the appropriation. 

In response to an inquiry by Chairman Piepmeyer, Ms. Ayers said that at the outset of the container 
yard expansion plan, the Port was at 600,000 TEUs but was not at full capacity. She noted that the 
study determined a bottleneck on the terminal at the container gate that limited capabilities to 
350,000 TEUs, which is the current capacity. On February 14th, the Port opened its new container 
gate complex with a fully automated container gate.  She noted that trucks need only stop at security, 
swipe a card, and continue directly to pick up or drop off a box. This has improved capacity to 1.2 
million TEUs. 

29



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

Ms. Ayers said the last year, the Port completed the first phase of its refrigerated container yard 
expansion with 760 plugs. Currently, Phase 2 is under design to add an additional 720 plugs. The Port 
has freezer and chiller capability on the terminal, and just signed a lease for construction of a cold 
storage facility off the terminal. Additionally, the Queen City Express rail service to Charlotte has 
added two new trans‐Pacific services since its reinstatement in 2017. And just this year, the Mid‐west 
Express, through the CCX Carolina Connector in Rocky Mount that NCDOT helped fund, is shipping 
boxes to the Midwest enabling zero‐dwell time at the Port.  

Ms. Ayers gave a brief overview of U.S. DOT grant awards as follows:  

 In 2020, the Port of Wilmington was awarded a $16 million grant for infrastructure
improvements.

 In 2021, the Port of Morehead City was awarded a $1.7 million U.S. DOT grant towards a $2
million project to replace rail on Radio Island.

 For 2022, a grant application is in progress to fund a portion of a $22 million program to finish the
container yard expansion and build a dedicated intermodal yard at the Port of Wilmington, which
is on today's consent agenda for consideration.

Ms. Ayers said that short‐term transportation priorities include a new north gate at Greenfield Street, 
improving U.S. 74 between Wilmington and Charlotte, South Front Street and Carolina Beach Road 
widening including Burnett Boulevard intersection improvements, and the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge 
replacement project.   

In response to an inquiry by Mr. Rivenbark, Ms. Ayers said that the State Ports contributes 87,000 
direct and indirect jobs to the state. She commented that the airports might contribute more jobs to 
the state. 

Chairman Piepmeyer expressed appreciation to Ms. Ayers. 

7) Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes from January 26, 2022
b. Resolution approving 2020‐2029 STIP/MPO Administrative Modification #22‐1
c. Opening of the 30‐day public comment period for 2020‐2029 STIP/MPO Transportation

Improvement Program Amendment #22‐2
d. Resolution supporting the North Carolina State Ports Authority Grant Applications for the US DOT

FY 22 Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE), Infrastructure for
Rebuilding America (INFRA), and Port Infrastructure Development (PID) grant programs to fund a
new Intermodal Terminal Facility at the Port of Wilmington

Mr. Forte made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Items 7a through 7d. Ms. Bozeman seconded 
the motion, and it carried unanimously by roll call as follows: 

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,  
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte, Eulis Willis and Landon Zimmer.  
Nays:  None. Excused: John Ellen. 

8) Regular Agenda
a. Resolution Supporting the Allocation of Additional Direct Attributable Funds to the City of

Wilmington for the Hooker Road Multi‐use Path (U‐5534G), Hinton Road Multi‐use Path (U‐5534H),
and Wrightsville Avenue/Greenville Avenue Intersection Improvement (U‐5534C) Projects
Executive Director Mike Kozlosky said that the projects were funded with Direct Attributable (DA)
funds in 2013 and 2014. He noted that the city has been working on the design of these projects and  30



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

has identified a need for additional funds for the construction of these facilities. The city is requesting 
$2.4 million in DA funds from the MPO and has committed to providing the 20% local match of 
$600,000 for the completion of those projects. Funds for the projects would come from the current 
fiscal year and would leave a balance of around $1.7 million in the DA program.  

Ms. Rivenbark made a motion to support the allocation of additional funds to the City of Wilmington. 
Mr. Anderson seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously by roll call as follows: 

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,  
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte, Eulis Willis and Landon Zimmer.  
Nays:  None. Excused: John Ellen. 

9) Discussion
a. 2020‐2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program Administrative Modifications #22‐2

Mr. Kozlosky stated that Administrative Modification #22‐1 is for informational purposes only and
will be brought back at the Board’s next meeting for consideration.

b. FY23 Unified Planning Work Program Development
MPO Deputy Director Abby Lorenzo said that this item is to provide some detail for a required
administrative modification to the draft FY23 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) and is an
update to what was presented to the Board at its January meeting. She noted that the WMPO is an
annual recipient of Federal Transit Administration 5303 funding, awarded at an 80% federal share,
requiring a 10% state and 10% local match. In the January draft UPWP, the total federal share was
split into $143,061 for FY23 and $47,687 for FY24. However, the FY23 UPWP is required to show the
entire amount of $190,748. She added that this change is for administrative purposes only and will
not increase the local match.

Mr. Kozlosky said that information can be found on page 46 of the agenda packet. He clarified that
the amount will be budgeted for one fiscal year but be spent over two fiscal years.  He added that
currently there is a 30‐day public comment period open on the draft, with the budget to be brought
back to the Board for consideration at its March 30 meeting.

c. Direct Attributable Programs Prioritization Criteria
Mr. Kozlosky said that this is an ongoing discussion item regarding the Direct Attributable (DA) scoring
criteria, which was presented at the Board’s last meeting. He noted that this is an update on the
schedule for the intended call for projects and award of those funds, based on direction from the
Board to canvas members and present revised scoring criteria.

MPO Transportation Planning Engineer Scott A. James recapped the direction from the Board to
increase safety ranking and gave the timeline as follows:

 March – input from membership,
 April – revised methodology and 100‐point total
 May – final draft for consideration
 June – issue a call with revised methodology for FY23 funds

d. Wilmington Multi‐modal Transportation Center Phase 1B
Mr. Kozlosky gave an update on the Wilmington Multi‐modal Transportation Center Phase 1B for the
building renovation at 525 North 4th Street, which would be used by the MPO for future office space.
He noted that bids came in $650,000 more than the architect’s/engineer’s estimate.  He added that
several options were explored: value engineering, phasing the project, asking the contractor to extend

31



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

their bids for additional time to secure additional moneys, and rejecting the bids and re‐bidding the 
project. Staff recommends either removing the Boardroom, which might result in a rough cost savings 
of $50,000, or asking for additional funds, $1.8 million from the MPO, and $468,000 from the city. He 
noted that initial discussions have been held with the city.  

Chairman Piepmeyer commented that a Boardroom might be considered essential. He pointed out 
that parking is still an issue with discussions ongoing with Cape Fear Community College. Vice Chair 
Miller pointed out that its purpose would be diminished without a boardroom. He added that value 
engineering would only yield 50 cents on the dollar. 

A lengthy discussion session followed. The Board expressed concerns regarding increasing 
construction costs and the timeline for the current trend to make a correction and how much of a 
correction could be expected.  

Mr. Rivenbark expressed reluctance to take this back to the city, although the options are lean.  

Chairman Piepmeyer commented that the Boards purpose is to advance transportation and expressed 
concerns about the cost of this project when transportation projects in the region need funding.  

In response to Vice Chair Miller, Mr. Kozlosky said that the building is about 7,200 square feet.  

Mr. Rivenbark commented that it would be less expensive to tear it down and build new. However, 
that would defeat the purpose of the historic element. He inquired if the cost (of the local match) 
could be shared. Mr. Kozlosky pointed out that when the building is complete, it will be owned by the 
city and that it is currently dilapidated. Mr. Rivenbark expressed a desire to consult with City Council.   

In response to an inquiry by Mr. Anderson, Mr. Kozlosky said that about $100,000 in the city budget 
has been unallocated, which could be used toward the match to the MPO money, so the ask of the 
city would be $331,586.  Board members asked about the total amount, Mr. Kozlosky said that the bid 
was $3.1 million. He noted that the estimate is conservative to avoid future asks, and any remaining 
balance would be returned to the DA fund.  

Ms. Hays asked about the intent of the project. Mr. Kozlosky explained that the MPO is housed in the 
City of Wilmington.  He reminded the Board that the building exists and must be used for a 
transportation purpose because it was purchased with transportation money by DOT. The thought 
was to use federal money to rehab the building because the MPO is a transportation agency that 
would move into the facility and use these dollars, which are eligible for historic rehabilitation. He 
added that the federal money cannot be used to demolish the building and build new. 

Discussion continued. Ms. Hays commented that proceeding forward seems to be the best option and 
concurred with Mr. Rivenbark that the city shouldn’t shoulder the entire burden. Mr. Kozlosky said 
that historical data shows that waiting another six months might anticipate a 20% to 30% increase in 
cost, approximately $900,000, and that’s the amount of time it will take to get the additional funds. 

Mr. Rivenbark estimated the rehab cost at $700 per square foot. Mr. Kozlosky noted that it includes 
furniture.  

Mr. Kozlosky reminded the Board that this item is for discussion only, that it will have to go to City 
Council first, and the MPO Board will consider it at its April meeting. Chairman Piepmeyer reminded 
the group that he will be absent from the March meeting. 

Mr. Forte inquired about the cost of walking away from the project. Chairman Piepmeyer said that the 
$370,000 investment in design would be lost. Mr. Kozlosky added that the building, with ownership 

32



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

transferred to the city in 2017 from NCDOT, would continue to sit vacant. He noted that this project 
has been in the works since 2019. 

Barfield expressed regret for the potential loss of a great opportunity to restore it. 

e. Wilmington Chamber’s Resolution Urging Consideration of All Options to Fund the Replacement of
the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge
Vice Chair Miller said the Chamber yesterday discussed the importance of the Cape Fear Memorial
Bridge to the region. He distributed a copy of the resolution that the Chamber adopted urging
consideration of all options to fund the bridge’s replacement.

Ms. English said that the Federal Highway Administration gave the Chamber an update yesterday on
what the Infrastructure Bill would do for transportation infrastructure in the State of North Carolina,
and Mr. Kimes gave an update on North Carolina’s transportation dollars. She noted that the Chamber
understands clearly that fewer transportation projects will be delayed thanks to the Infrastructure
Bill, that an unfunded priority is unlikely to get funding using traditional funding methods, and that
the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge is important to the region.

In response to an inquiry by Chairman Piepmeyer, Mr. Kozlosky said that the MPO received a
resolution from Brunswick County encouraging exploration of all funding options and another
resolution from the Town of Leland encouraging that the project be added to the State Transportation
Improvements Plan (STIP).

Mr. Kimes estimated that NCDOT’s 10‐year program is about $12 billion over‐programmed. He noted
that NCDOT expects to receive about $1.5 billion over the next five years from the Infrastructure Bill.
He explained that this will keep the first few of years of projects from slipping. He added that projects
in the STIP with greater costs will be a real challenge.

A lengthy discussion followed. Concerns were expressed regarding resurrecting tolling as an option as
well as the condition of the bridge. Mr. Anderson asked Ms. English if the Chamber supports a toll.
Chairman Piepmeyer pointed out that it’s a competitive process that might not end up being a toll.
Mr. Rivenbark expressed concerns about sponsoring options that are not fully supported by the
Chamber. Ms. English responded that she was in support of a toll, but others were more vocal.

Mr. Barfield expressed concerns about relitigating the tolling decision. He commented that he would
not support a toll. Ms. Hays expressed a desire to explore all options. She pointed out that the bridge
is in desperate need and DOT is unable to fund it. Mr. Anderson attributed the problem to a lack of
legislative action. He identified four options for bridge replacement as follows:

 Wait 40 years
 Tolls
 Bridge failure that attracts media attention
 A reduced toll subsidized by money from other sources, such as grants

Mr. Kozlosky said that competitive grants and mega grants exist through the Infrastructure Bill, but 
the challenge is the state match and the project being excluded from the STIP.  

Mr. Kimes said that there is a separate program for bridges, a Bridge STIP. But the value of the project 
was not enough for the High Value Bridge Program. So, the Highway STIP is the only option. And 
although the project scored well, it didn’t score well enough to get funded in addition to STIP being 
out of money right now. He noted that the unsolicited proposal was the only other option but was 

33



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

rejected. He added that NCDOT remains open to other options and suggested that grants be pursued. 
Mr. Kozlosky said the MPO is working in coordination with DOT to explore the options.  

Vice Chair Miller pointed out that nothing is going to happen unless the MPO supports all options. Mr. 
Barfield disagreed and commented that NCDOT is doing its job to explore the options except tolling.  

Mr. Anderson pointed out that the Board would be voting to consider all the options, not specifically 
tolling. Mr. Kimes reminded the Board that to continue with an unsolicited proposal, he would need 
the Board’s approval. He noted that when it was rejected in June, that was the end of it. 

Chairman Piepmeyer asked Mr. Kimes if he could go back to the originators of the unsolicited 
proposal to see if they are still interested. Mr. Kimes responded that he would need a specific request 
for that, which could be combined with the other request to explore all options. 

Mr. Kozlosky said that the Board could choose to explore all options but would have to identify that 
tolling be included since the unsolicited proposal was rejected in June. In response to an inquiry by 
Mr. Forte, Mr. Kimes explained that an unsolicited proposal is a two‐ to three‐year process that 
initiates a competitive process.  

Ms. Hayes reiterated that the Board is not voting on a specific project or option, merely instructing 
NCDOT to explore all options including tolls. She encouraged the Board to consider the unsolicited 
proposal if it’s still available. She concurred with Mr. Rivenbark that costs are increasing every day and 
inquired about bonus allocations. Mr. Kozlosky responded that bonus allocations go with tolls, are 
capped at $100 million, and must be applied to projects within the counties where the facility is 
located. 

Vice Chair Miller requested that staff prepare a resolution with the following language” 

“Now therefore, be it be resolved that the WMPO urges consideration of all possible options to 
include tolling and previous proposals to fund a replacement for the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge.”  

Mr. Forte seconded the motion and it carried 9‐3. 

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Deb Hays, Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie 
Rivenbark, Mike Forte and Landon Zimmer. Nays:  Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman and Eulis Willis. 
Excused: John Ellen. 

Mr. Barfield requested that weighty topics with much conversation and community input such as this 
one be included on the regular agenda and not as a walked‐on item. Ms. Bozeman concurred. 

10) Updates
a. Wilmington Urban Area MPO
b. Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority
c. NCDOT Division
d. NCDOT Transportation Planning Division

Mr. Kozlosky acknowledged new MPO staff members: Engineering Associate Jamar Johnson, and 
Associate Transportation Planner Emma Stogner (who starts on February 28th). He noted that 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Coordinator Nick Cannon is leaving the MPO on March 4th.  

Ms. Bozeman asked if the MPO is fully staffed. Mr. Kozlosky said the MPO lacking a GIS Analyst and a TDM 
Planner. He noted that rest of the updates are included in the agenda packet.  

34



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 9 
February 23, 2022 

11) Announcements
a. Hampstead Bypass Groundbreaking Ceremony‐ March 11th at 11 am
b. NC State Ethics Forms Due‐ April 15th
c. NC Association of MPOs 2022 Conference‐ April 20th‐22nd

Mr. Kimes said invitations were sent for the March 11th Hampstead Bypass groundbreaking ceremony. He 
noted that the Secretary of Transportation will be in attendance. He added that the ceremony will be held 
just north of the high school. 

Ms. Bozeman requested confirmation that her ethics form has been received. Mr. Kozlosky said he would 
look into it. 

Mr. Kozlosky said that the MPO expects 400 to 500 attendees at the NC Association of MPOs’ Conference 
at the Wilmington Convention Center downtown. He encouraged Board members to attend. Ms. Lorenzo 
said that mobile tours include the Port of Wilmington, two bike rides (downtown and Carolina Beach), 
micro‐transit to Belville, and a boat tour of the riverfront.  

Mr. Kozlosky said that the April MPO Board meeting will be held at the airport, starting with a tour of the 
airport. 

12) Adjournment
Next MPO Board meeting – March 30th, 2022

Chairman Piepmeyer said that Vice Chair Miller will run the March MPO Board meeting.

Mr. Rivenbark made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Vice Chair Miller, and the motion to
adjourn carried unanimously by roll call as follows:

Ayes: Mike Allen, Neil Anderson, Lynn Barbee, Jonathan Barfield, Brenda Bozeman, Deb Hays,
Hank Miller, David Piepmeyer, Charlie Rivenbark, Mike Forte and Eulis Willis. Nays: None.
Absent: Landon Zimmer. Excused: John Ellen.

The meeting adjourned at 4:29 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Mike Kozlosky 
Executive Director 
Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

THE ABOVE MINUTES ARE NOT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS.  
THE ENTIRE PROCEEDINGS ARE RECORDED DIGITALLY AS PART OF THIS RECORD. 

35



W
ILM

IN
G

TO
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
EA

 M
ETR

O
P

O
LITA

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZA
TIO

N

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

Y
 2022 -

(B
G

D
A

C
V

)
$680,000

$680,000

*
B

L-0045

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

D
IV

IS
IO

N

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

S
T

IP
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
, W

ILM
IN

G
T

O
N

 R
A

IL T
R

A
IL. C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

 
M

U
LT

I-U
S

E
 P

A
T

H
 F

R
O

M
 3R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 IN

 D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 
W

ILM
IN

G
T

O
N

 T
O

 T
H

E
 LO

V
E

 G
R

O
V

E
 B

R
ID

G
E

 M
U

LT
I-

U
S

E
 P

A
T

H
 F

A
C

ILIT
Y

.

A
D

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 A

T
 T

H
E

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 O

F
 T

H
E

 M
P

O
.

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP Am
endm

ent #22-1
(Decem

ber 2021)

36



STA
TEW

ID
E P

R
O

JEC
T

R
C

-2000

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

-

R
X

-2000

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

-

S
T

IP
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

, T
R

A
F

F
IC

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 S

T
U

D
Y

 
IM

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

LO
S

U
R

E
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

A
D

D
 N

E
W

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 F
O

R
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 O
N

L
Y

 A
T

 T
H

E
 

R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 O

F
 T

H
E

 R
A

IL
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

.

V
A

R
IO

U
S

, H
IG

H
W

A
Y

-R
A

IL G
R

A
D

E
 C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

.

A
D

D
 N

E
W

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 F
O

R
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 O
N

L
Y

 A
T

 T
H

E
 

R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 O

F
 T

H
E

 R
A

IL
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

.

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP Am
endm

ent #22-2
(January 2022)

37



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENTS #22-1 AND #22-2 TO THE 
2020-2029 STATE /MPO TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides 
transportation planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of 
Kure Beach, Town of Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, 
New Hanover County, Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority and the North Carolina Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found that the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization is conducting transportation planning in a continuous, cooperative, and 
comprehensive manner; and  

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Board of Transportation adopted the 2020-2029 State 
Transportation Improvement Program on September 5, 2019, and the Wilmington Urban Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Board adopted the Statewide/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs on October 30, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization desires to amend 
the adopted 2020-2029 State/MPO Transportation Improvement Programs for Amendments #22-
1 and #22-2; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization has conducted a 
30-day public comment period to receive citizen input on these proposed amendments.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization hereby approves amending the 2020-2029 State/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs for Amendments #22-1 and #22-2. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s Board on March 30, 2022. 

Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

38



W
ILM

IN
G

TO
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
EA

 M
ETR

O
P

O
LITA

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZA
TIO

N

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

S
R

 1219 (S
O

U
T

H
 17T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
), H

O
S

P
IT

A
L P

LA
Z

A
 T

O
 

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
C

E
 B

O
U

LE
V

A
R

D
.  C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

 M
U

LT
I-

U
S

E
 P

A
T

H
.

A
D

D
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 IN

 F
Y

 22 A
N

D
 R

IG
H

T
-

O
F

-W
A

Y
 IN

 F
Y

 22 N
O

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
D

.

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

Y
 2022 -

(B
G

A
N

Y
)

$120,000

 F
Y

 2022 -
(L)

$30,000

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 F

Y
 2022 -

(B
G

A
N

Y
)

$24,000

 F
Y

 2022 -
(L)

$6,000

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2022 -

(B
G

A
N

Y
)

$590,000

 F
Y

 2022 -
(L)

$148,000

$918,000

*
E

B
-5600

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

D
IV

IS
IO

N

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

-

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2023 -

(T
A

D
A

)
$516,000

 F
Y

 2023 -
(L)

$129,000

$645,000

E
B

-6029

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

D
IV

IS
IO

N

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

-

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

Y
 2022 -

(D
P

)
$1,760,000

 F
Y

 2022 -
(T

)
$440,000

$2,200,000

H
O

-0002D

A
N

S
O

N

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

C
O

LU
M

B
U

S

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

R
O

B
E

S
O

N

S
C

O
T

LA
N

D

U
N

IO
N

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

-----

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP M
odification #22-2

(January 2022)

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N

C
H

A
R

LO
T

T
E

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

IV
E

R
 R

U
R

A
L P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

C
A

P
E

 F
E

A
R

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N

LU
M

B
E

R
 R

IV
E

R
 R

U
R

A
L P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

C
LA

R
E

N
D

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

, C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
 M

U
LT

I-U
S

E
 P

A
T

H
 

A
LO

N
G

 C
LA

R
E

N
D

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 F
R

O
M

 4T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 T
O

 
S

R
 1573 (D

O
W

 R
O

A
D

).

T
O

 M
A

T
C

H
 T

H
E

 L
A

T
E

S
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 B

Y
 

T
H

E
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

IT
Y

, D
E

L
A

Y
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 F
R

O
M

 F
Y

 
22 T

O
 F

Y
 23.

U
S

 74, E
A

S
T

E
R

N
 E

N
D

 O
F

 M
O

N
R

O
E

 B
Y

P
A

S
S

 T
O

 I-140 IN
 

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
.  V

U
LN

E
R

A
B

ILIT
Y

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

S
, 

IN
S

T
A

LLA
T

IO
N

 O
F

 F
LO

O
D

 G
A

U
G

E
S

, A
N

D
 F

LO
O

D
 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

.

T
O

 A
D

H
E

R
E

 T
O

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 G

R
A

N
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

, M
O

D
IF

Y
 

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 F
R

O
M

 F
Y

 23 T
O

 F
Y

 22. 'D
P

' R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
S

 
F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 IN
F

R
A

 G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
S .

*
U

-5534

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

P
E

N
D

E
R

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

D
IV

IS
IO

N

A
D

D
 R

IG
H

T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

 IN
 F

Y
 22 A

N
D

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 IN

 
F

Y
 22 A

N
D

 F
Y

 23 N
O

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
D

.

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 F

Y
 2022 -

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2022 -

 F
Y

 2022 -

 F
Y

 2022 -

 F
Y

 2023 -

$2 20,000
(B

G
D

A
)

$1,762,000
(B

G
D

A
)

$168,000
(B

G
D

A
C

V
)

$496,000
(L)

$3,463,000
(B

G
D

A
)

 F
Y

 2023 -
$8 66,000

(L)

$6,975,000

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

M
E

T
R

O
P

O
LIT

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-
V

A
R

IO
U

S
, W

ILM
IN

G
T

O
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
E

A
 M

P
O

 S
T

P
-D

A
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

.

39



STA
TEW

ID
E P

R
O

JEC
T

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

, F
E

D
E

R
A

L LA
N

D
S

 T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
A

T
IO

N
 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 (F

LT
P

) A
N

D
 E

M
E

R
G

E
N

C
Y

 R
E

LIE
F

 F
O

R
 

F
E

D
E

R
A

LLY
 O

W
N

E
D

 R
O

A
D

S
 (E

R
F

O
).  R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 
B

R
ID

G
E

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

E
D

 O
N

 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 F
A

C
ILIT

IE
S

 T
H

A
T

 A
R

E
 O

W
N

E
D

 B
Y

 
T

H
E

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 T
H

A
T

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 
T

O
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L LA

N
D

S
.

A
D

D
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 IN

 F
Y

 23, F
Y

 24, A
N

D
 F

Y
 25 N

O
T

 
P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
D

 A
T

 T
H

E
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

 O
F

 
T

H
E

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

.

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2022 -

(F
LT

P
)

$11,000,000

 F
Y

 2023 -
(F

LT
P

)
$11,200,000

 F
Y

 2024 -
(F

LT
P

)
$9,500,000

 F
Y

 2025 -
(F

LT
P

)
$1,000,000

$32,700,000

R
-5753

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

E
X

E
M

P
T

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

-

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP M
odification #22-2

(January 2022)

40



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS #22-2 TO THE               
2020-2029 STATE /MPO TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides 
transportation planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of 
Kure Beach, Town of Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, 
New Hanover County, Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority and the North Carolina Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found that the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization is conducting transportation planning in a continuous, cooperative, and 
comprehensive manner; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Board of Transportation adopted the 2020-2029 State 
Transportation Improvement Program on September 5, 2019, and the Wilmington Urban Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Board adopted the Statewide/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs on October 30, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization desires to modify 
the adopted 2020-2029 State/MPO Transportation Improvement Programs for Administrative 
Modifications #22-2. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization hereby approves modifying the 2020-2029 State/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs for Administrative Modifications #22-2. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s Board on March 30, 2022. 

________________________________ 
Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

_______________________________ 
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

41



Unified Planning Work Program 

Fiscal Year 2023 

DRAFT
 March 30, 2022

42



2 

FY 2023 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
for the 

WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Subject Page 

Table of Contents ...................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 3 

Narrative of Section 104(f) Work Tasks to be Performed in FY 23 .................................. 4 

Tables of UPWP FTA Section 5303 Work Tasks to be Performed in FY 23 ....................... 8 

Planning Work Program Funding Sources FY 23 ......................................................... 17 

Anticipated DBE Contracting Opportunities for FY 23 .................................................. 18 

Resolution of Approval ............................................................................................. 19 

MPO Certification ..................................................................................................... 20 

43



3 

Introduction 

In compliance with Federal law and in the spirit of cooperation, the Wilmington Urban Area 
conducts a “cooperative, comprehensive, and continuing ..... ” transportation planning 
process. This Planning Work Program (PWP) outlines the tasks and associated funding sources 
dedicated to the Wilmington Urban Area MPO transportation planning process during fiscal 
year 2023. Depending on the specific funding source, tasks funded through the PWP are 
eligible for reimbursement of 80-90% of their cost from the Federal Highway Administration 
and Federal Transit Administration through the North Carolina Department of Transportation. 

The PWP for the Wilmington Urban Area identifies four separate funding sources for Urban 
Area transportation planning.  A brief description of these funding sources follows: 

-Statewide Planning and Research Programs (SPR) - These funds are used by NCDOT to
conduct work for the Wilmington Urban Area MPO.

-Federal Highway Administration Section 104(f) Funds - These funds are dedicated to the
urban area to perform transportation planning. They require a 20% local match.

-Federal Transit Administration Section 5303 Funds - These funds are used for transit planning
in the urban area. The Federal Transit Administration provides 80% of these funds, NCDOT
10%, and there is a required 10% local match.

-Surface Transportation Block Grant-Direct Attributable Funds - These funds are dedicated to
Transportation Management Areas and these funds can be used to perform transportation
planning. They require a 20% local match.

The local match requirements will be shared by all members of the Wilmington Urban Area 
MPO in direct proportion to population as defined in the Wilmington Urban Area MPO 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

44



4 

Narrative of PWP Section 104(f) Work Tasks to be Performed in FY 23 
(Primary work to be performed by lead planning agency staff except where noted.) 

Line-Item Codes: 

II-A-1 Traffic Volume Counts- Wilmington MPO staff maintains an ongoing traffic counting
program. An annual summary of the urban area traffic counts and accident data will be
prepared and uploaded to the WMPO website.

II-A-2 Vehicle Miles of Travel - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-3 Street System Changes - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-4 Traffic - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-5 Transit System Data - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-6 Dwelling Unit, Population, Employment Changes - Will measure land use changes by
Transportation Analysis Zone between 2020 Census and travel demand model base year. Staff
will provide capacity analysis for proposed developments within the Wilmington Urban Area
MPO’s planning area boundary.

II-A-7 Air Travel - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-8 Vehicle Occupancy Rate Counts - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-9 Travel Time Studies - Conduct key travel time studies for travel demand model and
development of the Long-Range Transportation Plan.

II-A-10 Mapping - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-11 Central Area Parking Inventory - No tasks foreseen.

II-A-12 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Inventory - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-1 Collection of Base Year Data - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-2 Collection of Network Data - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-3 Travel Model Updates - In concert with the North Carolina Department of
Transportation, MPO staff will assist in the development of the 2050 travel demand model.

II-B-4 Travel Surveys - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-5 Forecast of Data to Horizon Year - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-6 Community Goals and Objectives - Monitor public input as it pertains to goals and
objectives set forth in the adopted Metropolitan Transportation Plan. Implementation of the

45



5 

Performance Measures from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act. 

II-B-7 Forecast of Future Year Travel Patterns - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-8 Capacity Deficiency Analysis - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-9 Highway Element of Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) - Identification of highway
deficiencies, priorities, and proposed highway improvement solutions and strategies.
Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the MTP. Implementation of the
Performance Measures from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act.

II-B-10 Transit Element of Metropolitan Transportation Plan - Identify public transportation
deficiencies, priorities, and proposed transit improvement solutions for inclusion in the update
of the MTP. Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the update of the MTP.
Implementation of the Performance Measures from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs
Act.

II-B-11 Bicycle and Pedestrian Element of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan - Identify
bicycle deficiencies, priorities, and proposed bicycle and pedestrian improvement solutions and
strategies. Provide documentation of the process and recommendations in the update of the
MTP. Implementation of the Performance Measures from the Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act.

II-B-12 Airport/Air Travel Element of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan - Identify airport and
air service deficiencies, priorities, and proposed airport and air service improvement solutions
and strategies. Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the update of the
MTP.

II-B-13 Collector Street Element of Metropolitan Transportation Plan - No tasks foreseen.

II-B-14 Rail, Waterway and Other Elements of Metropolitan Transportation Plan - Identify rail
and waterway deficiencies, priorities, and proposed rail and waterway improvement solutions
and strategies. Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the update of the
MTP.

II-B-15 Freight Movement/Mobility Planning - Identification of freight movement deficiencies,
priorities, and proposed improvement solutions and strategies. Provide documentation of
process and recommendations in the update of the MTP. Implementation of the Performance
Measures from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act.

II-B-16 Financial Planning - Develop realistic, best estimates of funding sources available and
project cost estimates throughout the forecast years for the MTP. Ensure fiscal constraint in the
update of the MTP. Implementation of the Performance Measures from the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act.

II-B-17 Congestion Management Strategies - Develop strategies to address and manage
congestion by increasing transportation system supply, reducing demand by application of
alternative mode solutions, and transportation system management strategies. Evaluate

46



6 

strategies developed for the Congestion Management Process. Document process and 
solutions in the update of the MTP and CMP reports. Implementation of the Performance 
Measures from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act. 

II-B-18 Air Quality Planning/ Conformity Analysis - No tasks foreseen.

III-A Planning Work Program - Evaluation of FY 2023 PWP and development of FY 2024 PWP.

III-B Transportation Improvement Program - Review and amend the 2020-2029
Transportation Improvement Program on an as needed basis. Assist in the development of the
2023-2032 Transportation Improvement Program.

III-C-1 Title VI Compliance - Work to ensure compliance with the requirements of Title VI in
urban area policies and practices.

III-C-2 Environmental Justice - Analysis and outreach to ensure that transportation plans and
projects comply with Environmental Justice policies.

III-C-3 MBE Planning - Activities to encourage participation of minority-owned business
enterprises in contractual and supply opportunities.

III-C-4 Planning for the Elderly and Disabled - Ensure the special needs of the elderly and
disabled are addressed in all transportation planning projects.

III-C-5 Safety/Drug Control Planning - No tasks foreseen.

III-C-6 Public Involvement - Extensive Public Participation effort will be carried out to solicit
input and gauge public input for planning studies the within the Wilmington Urban Area MPO’s
planning area boundary.  Outreach will be used in the development of the MTP 2050 Plan.

III-C-7 Private Sector Participation - Activities to encourage private sector participation in
planning and project activities. 

III-D-1 Transportation Enhancement Planning - No tasks foreseen.

III-D-2 Environmental and Pre-TIP Planning - Conduct environmental analysis and planning for
the development of transportation projects in the Wilmington Urban Area.

III-D-3 Special Studies - Time utilized by Planning Staff to manage two STBG-DA funded
Special Studies performed by contracted consultants. Outside consultants will be contracted to
assist in the Pender County Bike Ped Plan and MTP Development.  Consultants have not yet
been selected to perform these tasks.

• Pender County Bike Ped Plan:
The purpose of the proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian plan is to develop
recommendations for bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure and policies in southern
Pender County. The plan will guide Pender County staff, the WMPO, and NCDOT in
future development requirements and investment in effort to improve the lives of
Pender County residents and visitors. The public benefits of bicycle and pedestrian

47



7 

infrastructure include providing increased safety on roadways; reducing traffic 
congestion by providing mode choice; improving connectivity to existing bicycle 
routes in the planning area such as the East Coast Greenway; and promoting healthy 
and active living. 

• 2050 MTP Outreach:
This special study will provide monetary resources to assist WMPO staff in public
outreach activities for the development of the 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan.
Public participation is crucial for the successful development and adoption of planning
documents. In order to achieve this participation, outreach efforts beyond basic
advertisements will likely be necessary. Examples include ads on social media, TV
advertisements, etc.

III-D-4 Regional or Statewide Planning - Coordination of urban area activities with statewide
and regional initiatives. 

III-E Management and Operations - Required ongoing administrative and operational tasks to
support MPO committees and reporting requirements.  The TDM Program is funded by STBG-
DA and 5303 funds and included as a task under Management and Operations.

• TDM Program:
To resume Transportation Demand Management efforts, the TDM Program will move
forward using STBG-DA and 5303 funding and will continue to be performed by
inhouse staff.  The TDM Program has been successful in promoting the Commuter
Friendly Employer Program, Bike Month, the River to Sea Bike Ride, and the
Commuter Challenge. This program works with local employers to promote
alternative modes of transportation and TDM strategies such as carpooling,
vanpooling, telecommuting, and personalized commuter plans. The program has
completed two successful “Be A Looker” campaigns, maintains a dedicated Go Coast
website, and promotes the carpool matching platform Share the Ride NC. In 2021,
the update to the short-range TDM plan “Cape Fear Change in Motion 2020” was
adopted by the Board. This plan will guide TDM efforts in our region through 2025.
Go Coast will continue to pursue the implementation of a Bike Share program(s) in
the region and regularly update TDM related resources like area bike maps and
model policies.

48



8 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code II-A-5
Title Transit System Data 
Task Objective Collect and analyze data for route planning and 

submission to NTD 
Tangible Product Expected Accurate data from multiple data collection 

devices onboard Wave Transit vehicles and 
other sources to ensure compliance with National 
Transit Database requirements 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Collection of data and submission to NTD 
Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 

MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 2,200 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 2,200 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 17,600 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

49



9 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code II-B-6
Title Community Goals & Objectives 
Task Objective Interpret and communicate with members of the 

Authority and WMPO TCC and TAC 
adopted planning documents defining community 
goals and objectives 

Tangible Product Expected Service offerings that are compliant with adopted 
plans that outlined the goals of the community for 
public transportation in the 
region 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Communication of goals and objectives to 
decision makers and the public 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington MPO 
and the Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority 
(Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 200 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 200 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 1,600 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

50



10 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code II-B-10
Title Transit Element of the LRTP 
Task Objective Provide input to CAC, TCC and TAC regarding 

long range transit plans for the region 
Tangible Product Expected Informed decisions regarding long range public 

transportation plans leading to a realistic 
planning document for the region 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Provided input and educated decision makers 
regarding the federal and state public 
transportation program 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 900 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 900 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 7,200 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

51



11 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code II-B-16
Title Financial Planning 
Task Objective Plan capital and operating cost estimates to 

ensure fiscal compliance and maintain the 
adopted level of transit service 

Tangible Product Expected Short range financial plans based on current 
federal and state legislation to ensure that transit 
services are provided in a consistent 
manner utilizing the most economical and 
efficient methods 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Financial planning of the public transportation 
program 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington MPO 
and the Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority 
(Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 800 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 800 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 6,400 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

52



12 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code III-C-1
Title Title VI 
Task Objective Interpret and prepare Title VI documents and 

monitor Title VI efforts to ensure compliance with 
FTA approved Title VI program 

Tangible Product Expected Compliance with the Title VI circular and adopted 
Title VI program 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Title VI program development and compliance 
efforts 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 300 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 300 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 2,400 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

53



13 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code III-C-3
Title Minority Business Enterprise 
Task Objective Implement and monitor the MBE program to be 

compliant with adopted MBE program, 
update MBE goals as required, and undertake 
MBE outreach 

Tangible Product Expected MBE participation that is equal to or greater than 
the adopted and approved MBE goal 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work MBE program oversight 
Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 

MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 100 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 100 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 800 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

54



14 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code III-C-6
Title Public Involvement 
Task Objective Hear and analyze public comment from monthly 

meetings of the Authority, email comments, 
written comments and other comments outlined 
in the Authority Public Involvement Program. 
Work with public to 
update LCP, LRTP, SRTP and other planning 
documents. 

Tangible Product Expected Make recommendations to appropriate parties 
from comments made to the Authority by 
members of the community 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Public comment 
Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 

MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 800 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 800 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 6,400 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

55



15 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code III-E
Title Management & Operations 
Task Objective MPO and CFPTA staff will conduct required 

administrative and operational tasks to support 
Wave Transit. Periodical reviews of 
administrative agreements and procedures. 
Staff will perform daily operations to disseminate 
planning information to the TAC/TCC committee 
members, the public and/or other agencies. 

Tangible Product Expected Compliance with FTA and NCDOT requirements, 
well informed community and elected officials 
about the public transit program, and functional 
system that meets the  needs of the community 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Collection of data and submission to NTD 
Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 

MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 12,775 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 12,774 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 102,198 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

56



16 

MPO Wilmington 
FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 
Task Code III-E
Title Management & Operations – TDM Program 
Task Objective MPO and CFPTA staff will conduct required 

administrative and operational tasks to support 
Wave Transit. Periodical reviews of 
administrative agreements and procedures. 
Staff will perform daily operations to disseminate 
planning information to the TAC/TCC committee 
members, the public and/or other agencies.  The 
MPO will implement Cape Fear Change in Motion 
2020. 

Tangible Product Expected Compliance with FTA and NCDOT requirements, 
well informed community and elected officials 
about the public transit program, and functional 
system that meets the  needs of the community. 
Implementation of strategies and of Cape Fear 
Change in Motion 2020. 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2024 
2 Year Contract 

Previous Work Collection of data and submission to NTD 
Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 

MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA / WMPO 
SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 
SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 
Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 
Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 
Section 5303 Local 10% 1,000 
Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 1,000 
Section 5303 FTA 80% 8,000 
Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 
Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 
Additional Funds - Local 100% 

57



W
ilm

ington U
rban Area M

etropolitan Planning O
rganization

FY2023 U
nified Planning W

ork Program
Adopted M

arch 30, 2022

TASK
TASK

CO
DE

DESCRIPTIO
N

LO
CAL

FHW
A

Total
LO

CAL
FHW

A
Total

LO
CAL

N
CDO

T
FTA

Total
LO

CAL
N
CDO

T
FEDERAL

TO
TAL

20%
80%

100%
20%

80%
100%

10%
10%

80%
100%

II‐A
SU

RVEILLAN
CE O

F CHAN
G
E

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐A‐1
Traffic Volum

e Counts
14,035

               
56,141

               
70,176

               
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

14,036
               

‐ 
56,141

               
70,177

               
II‐A‐2

Vehicle M
iles of Travel

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐A‐3
Street System

s Changes
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐A‐4

Traffic Accidents
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐A‐5

Tran sit System
 Data

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

2,200
 

2,200
 

17,600
22,000

               
2,200

                 
2,200

                 
17,600

               
22,000

               
II‐A‐6

Dw
elling U

nit, Pop. &
 Em

p. Change
800
 

3,200
                 

4,000
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
800
 

‐ 
3,200

                 
4,000
 

II‐A‐7
Air Travel

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐A‐8
Vehicle O

ccupancy Rates
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐A‐9

Travel Tim
e Studies 

50 
200
 

250
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
50 

‐ 
200
 

250
 

II‐A‐10
M
apping

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
19,635

               
78,538
 

98,173
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

19,635
               

‐ 
78,538

               
98,173

               
II‐A‐11

Central Area Parking Inventory
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐A‐12

Bike &
 Ped . Facilities Inventory

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐B
LO

N
G
 RAN

G
E TRAN

SPO
RTATIO

N
 PLAN

N
IN
G

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐B‐1 
Collection of Base Year Data

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐B‐2
Collection of N

etw
ork Data

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐B‐3
Travel M

odel U
pdates

2,000
                 

8,000
10,000

               
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

2,000
                 

‐ 
8,000

                 
10,000

               
II‐B‐4

Travel Surveys
‐ 

‐  
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐B‐5

Forecast of Data to Horizon year
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐B‐6

Com
m
unity Goals &

 O
bjectives

1,000
                 

4,000
5,000

                 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

200
 

200
 

1,600
 

2,000
                 

1,200
                 

200
 

5,600
                 

7,000
 

II‐B‐7
Forecast of Future Travel Patterns

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐  
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐B‐8
Capac ity Deficiency Analysis

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

II‐B‐9
Highw

ay Elem
ent of the LRTP

4,800
19,200

24,000
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
4,800

                 
‐ 

19,200
               

24,000
               

II‐B‐10
Transit Elem

ent of the LRTP
200

800
1,000

                 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

900
 

900
 

7,200
 

9,000
                 

1,100
                 

900
 

8,000
                 

10,000
               

II‐B‐11
Bicycle &

 Ped. Elem
ent of the LRTP

4,600
18,400

23,000
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
4,600

                 
‐ 

18,400
               

23,000
               

II‐B‐12
Airport/Air Travel Elem

ent of LRTP
500

2,000
2,500

                 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

500
 

‐ 
2,000

                 
2,500
 

II‐B‐13
Collector Street Elem

ent of LRTP
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
II‐B‐14

Rail, W
ater or other m

ode of LRTP
500

2,000
2,500

                 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐  
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

500
 

‐ 
2,000

                 
2,500
 

II ‐B‐15
Freight M

ovem
ent/M

obility Planning
600

2,400
3,000

                 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

600
 

‐ 
2,400

                 
3,000
 

II‐B‐16
Financial Planning

400
1,600

2,000
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
800
 

800
 

6,400
 

8,000
                 

1,200
                 

800
 

8,000
                 

10,000
               

II‐B‐17
Congestion M

anagem
ent Strategies

3,000
12,000

15,000
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
3,000

                 
‐ 

12,000
               

15,000
               

II‐B‐18
Air Q

ual. Planning/Conform
ity Anal.

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

III‐A
PLAN

N
IN
G
 W

O
RK PRO

G
RAM

400
 

1,600
 

2,000
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
400
 

‐ 
1,600

                 
2,000
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

III‐B
TRAN

SPO
RTATIO

N
 IM

PRO
VEM

EN
T PRO

G
RAM

1,000
 

4,000
 

5,000
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
1,000

                 
‐ 

4,000
                 

5,000
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

III‐C
CVL RG

TS. CM
P./O

TR. REG
. REQ

S. 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
III‐C‐1

Title VI
100
 

400
 

500
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
300
 

300
 

2,400
 

3,000
                 

400
 

300
 

2,800
                 

3,500
 

III‐C‐2
Environm

ental Justice
400
 

1,600
 

2,000
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
400
 

‐ 
1,600

                 
2,000
 

III‐C‐3
M
inority Business Enterprise

50
200
 

250
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
100
 

100
 

800
 

1,000
                 

150
 

100
 

1,000
                 

1,250
 

III ‐C‐4
Planning for the Elderly &

 Disabled
50

200
 

250
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
50 

‐ 
200
 

250
 

III‐C‐5
Safety/Drug Control Planning

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

III‐C‐6
Public Involvem

ent
4,000

                 
16,000

               
20,000

               
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

800
 

800
 

6,400
 

8,000
                 

4,800
                 

800
 

22,400
               

28,000
               

III‐C‐7
Private Sector Participation

250
 

1,000
 

1,250
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
250
 

‐ 
1,000

                 
1,250
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
III‐D

IN
CIDEN

TAL PLN
G
./PRO

JECT DEV.
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
III‐D

‐1
Transportation Enhancem

ent Plng.
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
III‐D

‐2
Enviro. Analysis &

 Pre‐TIP Plng.
100
 

400
 

500
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
100
 

‐ 
400
 

500
 

III‐D
‐3

Special Studies: Staff Tim
e ‐ Planning

2,000
                 

8,000
 

10,000
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
2,000

                 
‐ 

8,000
                 

10,000
               

III ‐D
‐3

Special Studies: Consultant ‐ Pender Co. Bike Ped Plan
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

19,000
               

76,000
 

95,000
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
19,000

               
76,000

               
95,000

               
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Consultant ‐ M

TP Developm
ent

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
3,000
 

12,000
 

15,000
               

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
3,000

                 
‐ 

12,000
               

15,000
               

III‐D
‐4

Regional or Statew
ide Planning

500
 

2,000
 

2,500
                 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
500
 

‐ 
2,000

                 
2, 500
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

III‐E
M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T &

 O
PERATIO

N
S

48,640
194,559

             
243,199

             
110,064

             
440,257

                 
550,321

             
12,775

               
12,774

               
102,198

                 
127,748

             
171,479

             
12,774

               
737,014

             
921,267

             
III‐E

M
anagem

ent &
 O
perations: Staff Tim

e ‐ TDM
 Program

‐ 
‐ 

18, 000
               

72,000
 

90, 000
               

1,000
 

1, 000
                 

8,000
 

10, 000
               

19,000
               

1,000
                 

80,000
               

100,000
             

TO
TALS

$89,975
$359,900

$449,875
$169,699

$678,795
$848,494

$19,076
$19,074

$152,598
$190,748

$278,750
$19,074

$1,191,293
$1,489,11717

TASK FU
N
DIN

G
 SU

M
M
ARY

SEC. 104 (f) PL 
STBG

P‐DA
SECTIO

N
  5303

H
ighw

ay / Transit
 H
ighw

ay / Transit
Transit / H

ighw
ay

W
BS #: 

W
BS #: 

W
BS #: 

58



18 

STBG
-D

A Funded - Anticipated D
BE Contracting O

pportunities for FY 2023 

Nam
e of M

PO: W
ilm

ington Urban Area M
PO 

Person Com
pleting Form

: M
ike Kozlosky 

Telephone Num
ber: 910-342-2781 

Prospectus 
Task Code 

Prospectus D
escription 

N
am

e of Agency 
Contracting O

ut 
Type of Contracting 

O
pportunity 

(Consultant, etc.) 
Federal Funds to be 

Contracted O
ut 

Total Funds to be 
Contracted O

ut 

III-D-3
Special Studies: Pender 
County Bike Ped Plan 

City of W
ilm

ington 
Consultant 

$76,000 
$95,000 

III-D-3
Special Studies: 
Consultant for M

TP 
Developm

ent 
City of W

ilm
ington 

Consultant 
$12,000 

$15,000 

59



19 

WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FY 2023 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
FOR THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority, and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, a comprehensive and continuing transportation planning program must be carried out 
cooperatively in order to ensure that funds for transportation projects are effectively allocated to the 
Wilmington Urban Area; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilmington has been designated as the recipient of Federal Transit 
Administration Metropolitan Planning Program (Section 5303) funds and Federal Highway 
Administration Metropolitan Planning (Section 104(f)) funds; and 

WHEREAS, members of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Board agree 
that the Planning Work Program will effectively advance transportation planning for State Fiscal Year 
2022-2023. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby endorses the FY 2022-2023 Planning Work Program for the Wilmington Urban 
Area. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on March 30, 2022. 

********************* 
I, Hank Miller, Vice-Chair of the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of an excerpt from the minutes 
of a meeting of the Board, duly held on this the 30th day of March,  2022. 

Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

********************* Subscribed and sworn to me this   day of , 2022. 

Notary Public 
My commission expires 

60



20 

WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION’S TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority, and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found that the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization is 
conducting transportation planning in a continuous, cooperative, and comprehensive manner in 
accordance with 23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 U.S.C. 1607; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found the Transportation Planning Process to be in full compliance with Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Title VI Assurance executed by each State under 23 U.S.C. 324 
and 29 U.S.C. 794; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered how the Transportation Planning Process will affect the 
involvement of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the FHWA and the FTA funded planning projects 
(Section 1003(b) of ISTEA of 1991 (Pub. L. 102-240), Sec. 105(f), Pub. L. 97-424, 96 Stat. 2100, 49 CFR 
part 23); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered how the Transportation Planning Process will affect the elderly 
and the disabled per the provision of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101-336, 104 
Stat. 327, as amended) and the U.S. DOT implementing regulations (49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38); and 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Plan has a planning horizon year of 2045, and   meets all 
the requirements for an adequate Metropolitan Transportation Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby certifies the transportation planning process for the Wilmington Metropolitan 
Planning Organization on this the 30th day of March 2022. 

Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

61



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE CITY OF WILMINGTON’S APPLICATION FOR THE 
NORTH CAROLINA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT’S TRANSPORTATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE RESILIENCY FUND GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority, and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Public Safety has released the transportation grants 
through the Emergency Management Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund which was allocated as 
a part of the 2021 state budget; and 

WHEREAS, eligible applicants are state agencies, units of local government, and nonprofit corporations 
to facilitate transportation resilience against natural disasters; and 

WHEREAS, total available funding for this grant program is $15 million with the anticipated number of 
grants available between five (5) and thirty (30); and  

WHEREAS, projects can be 100% funded with no cost share and are paid on a reimbursement basis.; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilmington has identified an interest in applying to the Transportation 
Infrastructure Resiliency Fund grant for funding to install equipment that allows traffic signals to operate 
on back-up power during power failures; and  

WHEREAS, the request would also include a support vehicle, generators, traffic control devices, and 
other project related equipment and supplies that will minimize the disruption of traffic flow in and around 
the city during post storm recovery. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby supports the City of Wilmington’s application for the North Carolina Emergency 
Management’s Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund Grant. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on March 30, 2022. 

_________________________________ 
Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

_________________________________ 
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

62



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING PENDER COUNTY’S APPLICATION FOR THE NORTH 
CAROLINA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT’S TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE 

RESILIENCY FUND GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority, and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Public Safety has released the transportation grants 
through the Emergency Management Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund which was allocated as 
a part of the 2021 state budget; and 

WHEREAS, eligible applicants are state agencies, units of local government, and nonprofit corporations 
to facilitate transportation resilience against natural disasters; and 

WHEREAS, total available funding for this grant program is $15 million with the anticipated number of 
grants available between five (5) and thirty (30); and  

WHEREAS, projects can be 100% funded with no cost share and are paid on a reimbursement basis; and 

WHEREAS, Pender County has identified an interest in pursuing the Transportation Infrastructure 
Resiliency Fund Grant in order to complete a Risk Assessment of the Highway 210 corridor between 
Highway 117 and US 17; and  

WHEREAS, this section of NC 210 is identified as a Hurricane Evacuation Route but historically has 
flooded significantly during Hurricane events. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby supports Pender County’s application for the North Carolina Emergency 
Management’s Transportation Infrastructure Resiliency Fund Grant. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on March 30, 2022. 

_________________________________ 
Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

_________________________________ 
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

63



2021 - 2022 Unified Planning Work Program Amendment # 3 – PL 104 
March 30, 2022 

II-A-2 Vehicle Miles of Travel:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $250 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-A-4 Traffic Accidents:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $250 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-A-5 Transit System Data:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $500 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-A-6 Dwelling Unit, Pop. & Emp. Change:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $1,538 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-A-9 Travel Time Studies:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $250 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-A-12 Bike & Ped. Facilities Inventory:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $2,168 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-3 Travel Model Updates:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $9,000 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-6 Community Goals & Objectives:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $5,924 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

64



2 

II-B-8 Capacity Deficiency Analysis:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $1,000 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-9 Highway Element of the LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $15,205 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-10 Transit Element of the LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $2,055 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-11 Bicycle & Ped. Element of the LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $1,000 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-12 Airport/Air Travel Element of LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $4,931 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-13 Collector Street Element of LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $2,000 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-14 Rail, Water or other mode of LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $2,156 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-15 Freight Movement/Mobility Planning:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $2,156 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-16 Financial Planning:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $675 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-17 Congestion Management Strategies:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $8,976 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-A Planning Work Program:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $1,039 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

65



3 

III-B Transportation Improvement Program:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $2,839 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-1 Title VI:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $500 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-3 Minority Business Enterprise:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $500 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-4 Planning for the Elderly & Disabled:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $250 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-6 Public Involvement:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $3,865 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-7 Private Sector Participation:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $520 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-D-2 Enviro. Analysis & Pre-TIP Plng.:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $362 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-D-3 Special Studies: Staff Time - Planning:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $4,327 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-D-4 Regional or Statewide Planning:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $1,837 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-E Management & Operations:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $61,309 
Increase in funding will capture the funding decreases in the above tasks.  This is in effort to 
clean up the UPWP and to allow for expenditure flexibility. 

66



4 

2021 - 2022 Unified Planning Work Program Amendment # 3 – STBG-DA 
March 30, 2022 

II-A-10 Mapping:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $35,000 
Reduction of expenditures based on the reduction of staff time assigned to this task.  This is due 
to the GIS Analyst and GIS Intern position being vacant for the past 5 months.  We anticipate the 
Analyst position will be filled in May. 

III-D-3 Special Studies: Staff Time - Pender Co. Roadway Safety Audit:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $20,000 
Due to Pender County staff changes and other planning priorities, Pender County staff have 
withdrawn the request for this study at this time. 

III-E Management & Operations:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $55,000 
Increase in funding will capture the funding decreases in the above tasks.  This is in effort to 
clean up the UPWP and to allow for expenditure flexibility. 

2021 - 2022 Unified Planning Work Program Amendment # 3 – 5303 
March 30, 2022 

II-A-5 Transit System Data:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $10,100 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-6 Community Goals & Objectives:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $950 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-10 Transit Element of the LRTP:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $500 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

II-B-16 Financial Planning:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $1,350 
Increase of expenditures based on anticipated increase of staff time allocated to this task. 

67



5 

III-C-1 Title VI:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $7,000 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-3 Minority Business Enterprise:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $7,300 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-C-6 Public Involvement:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item decreased by $7,000 
Reduction of expenditures based on anticipated reduction of staff time allocated to this task. 

III-E Management & Operations:
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $8,400 
Increase in funding will capture the funding decreases in the above tasks.  This is in effort to 
clean up the UPWP and to allow for expenditure flexibility. 

2021 - 2022 Unified Planning Work Program Amendment # 3 – 5304 
March 30, 2022 

III-D-3 Special Studies: Consultant – WAVE Zero Emissions Vehicles Transition Study
Based on anticipated expenditures, the line item increased by $100,000 

The Federal Transit Administration and other primary funding agencies have directed transit 
agencies nationwide to transition their fleets to Low or No Emissions, with funding priority given 
to Zero Emissions Vehicles (ZEV).  In 2020, North Carolina’s governor signed the Multi-State 
Medium and Heavy-Duty ZEV Memorandum of Understanding, committing to electrifying buses 
in the state.  CFPTA/Wave Transit has a total of 68 vehicles, of which only 30 are CNG low 
emission vehicles.  Eight transit agencies and two airport shuttle services have already begun 
electrifying their fleet in North Carolina, which ranks 7th in the nation for transit electrification.   
The study, supported by and coordinated with, the North Carolina Department of Transportation 
will facilitate 1) the creation of a Zero-Emission Fleet Transition Plan, and 2) the engineering and 
design for infrastructure for charging stations.  The Transition Plan is a requirement by FTA to 
apply for grant funds supporting any ZEV projects, including vehicles and all related 
infrastructure.  Transportation accounts for 29% of U.S. greenhouse gas emissions.  Planning for 
the electrification of the fleet will help position CFPTA to purchase or lease electric vehicles that 
help reduce pollutants and combat negative climate change.  The implementation of the 
vehicles over time would help improve the area’s air quality index, as well as noise pollution, 
creating a sustainable city and region for its residents and visitors.  

68



W
ilm

ington U
rban Area M

etropolitan Planning O
rganization

FY2022 U
nified Planning W

ork Program
Am

endm
ent # 3 - M

arch 30, 2022

TASK
TASK

CO
DE

DESCRIPTIO
N

LO
CAL

FHW
A

Total
LO

CAL
FHW

A
Total

LO
CAL

N
CDO

T
FTA

Total
N
CDO

T
FTA

Total
LO

CAL
N
CDO

T
FEDERAL

TO
TAL

20%
80%

100%
20%

80%
100%

10%
10%

80%
100%

20%
80%

100%
II‐A

SU
RVEILLAN

CE O
F CHAN

G
E

II‐A‐1
Traffic Volum

e Counts
13,000

        
52,000

        
65,000

        
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
13,000

         
‐

                
52,000

         
65,000

         
II‐A‐2

Vehicle M
iles of Travel

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐A‐3
Street System

s Changes
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐A‐4

Traffic Accidents
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐A‐5

Transit System
 Data

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

600
             

2,400
          

3,000
          

2,210
          

2,210
          

17,680
        

22,100
        

‐
              

2,810
            

2,210
            

20,080
         

25,100
         

II‐A‐6
Dw

elling U
nit, Pop. &

 Em
p. Change

492
             

1,970
          

2,462
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

492
               

‐
                

1,970
            

2,462
            

II‐A‐7
Air Travel

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐A‐8
V ehicle O

ccupancy Rates
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐A‐9

Travel Tim
e Studies 

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐A‐10
M
apping

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

9,000
          

36,000
        

45,000
        

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

9,000
            

‐
                

36,000
         

45,000
         

II‐A‐11
Central Area Parking Inventory

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐A‐12
Bike &

 Ped. Facilities Inventory
166

             
666

             
832

             
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
166

               
‐

                
666

               
832

               
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐B

LO
N
G
 RAN

G
E TRAN

SPO
RTATIO

N
 PLAN

N
IN
G

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐B‐1 
Collection of Base Year Data

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐B‐2
Collection of N

etw
ork Data

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

II‐B‐3
Travel M

odel U
pdates

200
             

800
1,000

          
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
200

               
‐

                
800

               
1,000

            
II‐B‐4

Tr avel Surveys
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐B‐5

Forecast of Data to Horizon year
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐B‐6

Com
m
unity Goals &

 O
bjectives

815
             

3,261
4,076

          
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
495

             
495

             
3,960

          
4,950

          
‐

              
1,310

            
495

               
7,221

            
9,026

            
II‐B‐7

Forecast of Future Travel Patter ns
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐B‐8

Capacity Deficiency Analysis
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐B‐9

Highw
ay Elem

ent of the LRTP
1,759

7,036
8,795

          
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
1,759

            
‐

                
7,036

            
8,795

            
II‐B‐10

Transit Elem
ent of the LRTP

811
3,244

4,055
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

450
             

450
             

3,600
          

4,500
          

‐
              

1, 261
            

450
               

6,844
            

8,555
            

II‐B‐11
Bicycle &

 Ped. Elem
ent of the LRTP

4,200
16,800

21,000
        

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

4,200
            

‐
                

16,800
         

21,000
         

II‐B‐12
Airport/Air Travel Elem

ent of LRTP
14

55
69

               
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
14

                 
‐

                
55

                 
69 

II‐B‐13
Collector Street Elem

ent of LRTP
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
II‐B‐14

Rail, W
ater or other m

ode of LRTP
69

275
344

             
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
69

                 
‐

                
275

               
344

               
II‐B‐15

Freight M
ovem

ent/M
obility Planning

169
675

844
             

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

169
               

‐
                

675
               

844
               

II‐B‐16
Financial Planning

265
1,060

1,325
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

935
             

935
             

7,480
          

9,350
          

‐
              

1,200
            

935
               

8,540
            

10,675
         

II‐B‐17
Congestion M

anage m
ent Strategies

1,205
4,819

6,024
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

1,205
            

‐
                

4,819
            

6,024
            

II‐B‐18
Air Q

ual. Planning/Conform
ity Anal.

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

III‐A
PLAN

N
IN
G
 W

O
RK PRO

G
RAM

16
               

65
               

81
               

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

16
                 

‐
                

65
                 

81 
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐B

TRAN
SPO

RTATIO
N
 IM

PRO
VEM

EN
T PRO

G
RAM

32
               

129
             

161
             

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

32
                 

‐
                

129
               

161
               

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

III‐C
CVL RG

TS. CM
P./O

TR. REG
. REQ

S. 
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐C‐1

Title VI
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
100

             
100

             
800

             
1,000

          
‐

              
100

               
100

               
800

               
1,000

            
III‐C‐2

Environm
ental Justice

400
             

1,600
          

2,000
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

400
               

‐
                

1,600
            

2,000
            

III‐C‐3
M
inority Business Enterprise

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

70
               

70
               

560
             

700
             

‐
              

70
                 

70
                 

560
               

700
               

III‐C‐4
P lanning for the Elderly &

 Disabled
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐C‐5

Safety/Drug Control Planning
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐C‐6

Public Involvem
ent

227
             

908
             

1,135
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

100
             

100
             

800
             

1,000
          

‐
              

327
               

100
               

1,708
            

2,135
            

III‐C‐7
Private Sector Par ticipation

146
             

584
             

730
             

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

146
               

‐
                

584
               

730
               

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

III‐D
IN
CIDEN

TAL PLN
G
./PRO

JECT DEV.
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐D

‐1
Transportation Enhancem

ent Plng.
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐D

‐2
Enviro. Analysis &

 Pre‐TIP Plng.
28

               
110

             
138

             
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
28

                 
‐

                
110

               
138

               
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Staff Tim

e ‐ Planning
2,865

          
11,462

        
14,327

        
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
2,865

            
‐

                
11,462

         
14,327

         
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Staff Tim

e ‐ Pender County Roadw
ay Safety Audit

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

III‐D
‐3

Special Studies: Consultant ‐ Strategic Plan U
pdate *

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

500
             

2,000
          

2,500
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

500
               

2,000
            

2,500
            

III‐D
‐3

Special Studies: Consultant ‐ N
avassa Collector St.

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

15,000
        

60,000
        

75,000
        

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

15,000
         

‐
                

60,000
         

75,000
         

III‐D
‐3

Special Studies: Consultant ‐ N
 Brunsw

ick County Transit Study
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
‐

                
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Consultant ‐ Kure Beach Bike Plan

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

8,000
          

32,000
        

40,000
        

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

8,000
            

‐
                

32,000
         

40,000
         

III‐D
‐3

Special Studies : Consultant ‐ FY22 Congestion M
anagem

ent Plan
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
7,700

          
30,800

        
38,500

        
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
7,700

            
‐

                
30,800

         
38,500

         
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Consultant ‐ Leland U

S 17 Ped Plan
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
4,000

          
16,000

        
20,000

        
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
4,000

            
‐

                
16,000

         
20,000

         
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Consultant ‐ Staff Com

pensation Analysis
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
1,020

          
4,080

          
5,100

          
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
1,020

            
‐

                
4,080

            
5,100

            
III‐D

‐3
Special Studies: Consultant ‐ W

AVE Zero Em
issions Vehicle Study

20,000
        

80,000
        

100,000
     

‐
                

20,000
         

80,000
         

100,000
       

III‐D
‐4

Regional or Statew
ide Planning

633
             

2,530
          

3,163
          

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

633
               

‐
                

2,530
            

3,163
            

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

‐
                

III‐E
M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T &

 O
PERATIO

N
S

65,288
261,154

     
326,442

     
108,153

     
432,611

     
540,764

     
4,977

          
4,975

          
39,805

        
49,757

        
‐

              
‐

              
‐

              
178,418

       
4,975

            
733,570

       
916,963

       
III‐E

M
anagem

ent &
 O
perations: Staff Tim

e ‐ TDM
 Program

‐
              

‐
              

14,490
        

57,960
        

72,450
        

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

‐
              

14,490
         

‐
                

57,960
         

72,450
         

TO
TALS

$92,801
$371,202

$464,003
$168,462

$673,852
$842,314

$9,337
$9,335

$74,685
$93,357

$20,000
$80,000

$100,000
$270,600

$29,335
$1,199,739

$1,499,674

*
Special Studies: Consultant ‐ Strategic Plan U

pdate *
$2,000 in Federal Funds budgeted for FY22 w

ill be charged against the FY2 1 U
PW

P Contract # 7500024222, under STBG
‐DA Fund  W

BS # 44094.1.2

TASK FU
N
DIN

G
 SU

M
M
ARY

SEC. 104 (f) PL 
STBG

P‐DA
SECTIO

N
  5303

Section 5304
H
ighw

ay / Transit
 H
ighw

ay / Transit
Transit / H

ighw
ay

Transit / H
ighw

ay
W
BS #: 

W
BS #: 

W
BS #: 

W
BS #: 

69



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT #3 TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 UNIFIED 
PLANNING WORK PROGRAM  

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority, and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Unified Planning Work Program documenting the continuing, 
cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning program in the Wilmington Urban Area was 
adopted by the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s Board on March 31, 2021; 
and 

WHEREAS, the need for amendments to the FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program has been 
evaluated and justified in order to effectively advance transportation planning for FY 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization can amend the FY 2022 
Unified Planning Work Program to cover any anticipated expenditures for the fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization proposes amendments to 
the FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program to reflect current and anticipated expenditures. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization hereby approves Amendment #3 to the FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on March 30, 2022. 

_________________________________ 
Hank Miller, Vice-Chair 

_________________________________ 
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

70



STA
TEW

ID
E P

R
O

JEC
T

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

N
C

D
O

T
, 5339 S

M
A

LL U
R

B
A

N

M
O

D
IF

Y
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 IN

 F
Y

 22 A
T

 T
H

E
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

 O
F

 M
P

O
.

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

F
Y

 2022
(S

T
B

G
)

$273,000

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 F
Y

 2022 -
(S

)
$219,000

 F
Y

 2022 -
(L)

$219,000

 F
Y

 2022 -
(5339)

$1,747,000

$2,458,000

*
T

C
-0020

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

P
U

B
LIC

 T
R

A
N

S

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

-

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP M
odification #22-3

(February 2022)

71



W
ILM

IN
G

TO
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
EA

 M
ETR

O
P

O
LITA

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZA
TIO

N

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

U
S

 74 (E
A

S
T

W
O

O
D

 R
O

A
D

), S
R

 1409 (M
ILIT

A
R

Y
 C

U
T

O
F

F
 

R
O

A
D

) IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 IN
 W

ILM
IN

G
T

O
N

.  C
O

N
V

E
R

T
 A

T
-

G
R

A
D

E
 IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 T

O
 A

N
 IN

T
E

R
C

H
A

N
G

E
.

M
O

D
IF

Y
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 F

R
O

M
 S

T
A

T
E

 T
O

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L
.

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 F

Y
 2023 -

(N
H

P
)

$5,666,000

 F
Y

 2024 -
(N

H
P

)
$11,333,000

 F
Y

 2025 -
(N

H
P

)
$5,666,000

U
T

ILIT
IE

S
 F

Y
 2023 -

(N
H

P
)

$5,212,000

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2025 -

(N
H

P
)

$385, 000

 F
Y

 2026 -
(N

H
P

)
$12,5 51,000

 F
Y

 2027 -
(N

H
P

)
$13,1 71,000

 F
Y

 2028 -
(N

H
P

)
$9,268,000

 F
Y

 2029 -
(N

H
P

)
$3,125,000

$66 ,377,000

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
, T

R
A

F
F

IC
 S

IG
N

A
L P

R
E

-E
M

P
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
.

T
O

 M
A

T
C

H
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
IT

Y
, D

E
L

A
Y

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 F

Y
 22 

T
O

 F
Y

 23.

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2023 -

(B
G

D
A

)
$627, 000

 F
Y

 2023 -
(L)

$157,0 00

$784,000

*
U

-5710

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

U
-6235

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

D
IV

IS
IO

N

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP M
odification #22-3

(February 2022)

72



W
ILM

IN
G

TO
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
EA

 M
ETR

O
P

O
LITA

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZA
TIO

N

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

, S
A

F
E

T
Y

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 A

T
 V

A
R

IO
U

S
 

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.

A
D

D
 R

IG
H

T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

 IN
 F

Y
 22 A

N
D

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 IN

 
F

Y
 22 N

O
T

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

D
.

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 F

Y
 2022 -

(H
S

IP
)

$30,000

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2022 -

(H
S

IP
)

$180,000

$210,000

W
-5703D

IV

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

D
U

P
LIN

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

O
N

S
LO

W

P
E

N
D

E
R

S
A

M
P

S
O

N

D
IV

IS
IO

N

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

G
R

A
N

D
 S

T
R

A
N

D
 M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
E

A
 

M
E

T
R

O
P

O
LIT

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

M
ID

-C
A

R
O

LIN
A

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

E
A

S
T

E
R

N
 C

A
R

O
LIN

A
 R

U
R

A
L P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

C
A

P
E

 F
E

A
R

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

V
A

R
IO

U
S

, S
A

F
E

T
Y

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 A

T
 V

A
R

IO
U

S
 

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.

A
D

D
 R

IG
H

T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

 IN
 F

Y
 22 A

N
D

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 IN

 
F

Y
 22 N

O
T

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

D
.

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 F

Y
 2022 -

(H
S

IP
)

$30,000

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2022 -

(H
S

IP
)

$180,000

$210,000

W
-5703R

E
G

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

D
U

P
LIN

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

O
N

S
LO

W

P
E

N
D

E
R

S
A

M
P

S
O

N

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

G
R

A
N

D
 S

T
R

A
N

D
 M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
E

A
 

M
E

T
R

O
P

O
LIT

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

M
ID

-C
A

R
O

LIN
A

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

E
A

S
T

E
R

N
 C

A
R

O
LIN

A
 R

U
R

A
L P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

C
A

P
E

 F
E

A
R

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP M
odification #22-3

(February 2022)

73



W
ILM

IN
G

TO
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
EA

 M
ETR

O
P

O
LITA

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZA
TIO

N

S
T

IP
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

, S
A

F
E

T
Y

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 A

T
 V

A
R

IO
U

S
 

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.

A
D

D
 R

IG
H

T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

 IN
 F

Y
 22 A

N
D

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 IN

 
F

Y
 22 N

O
T

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

D
.

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 F

Y
 2022 -

(H
S

IP
)

$40,000

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

Y
 2022 -

(H
S

IP
)

$240,000

$280,000

W
-5703S

W

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

D
U

P
LIN

N
E

W
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

O
N

S
LO

W

P
E

N
D

E
R

S
A

M
P

S
O

N

S
T

A
T

E
W

ID
E

P
R

O
J.C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y

G
R

A
N

D
 S

T
R

A
N

D
 M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

W
ILM

IN
G

T
O

N
 U

R
B

A
N

 A
R

E
A

 
M

E
T

R
O

P
O

LIT
A

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

 U
R

B
A

N
 A

R
E

A
 

M
E

T
R

O
P

O
LIT

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

M
ID

-C
A

R
O

LIN
A

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

E
A

S
T

E
R

N
 C

A
R

O
LIN

A
 R

U
R

A
L P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

-

C
A

P
E

 F
E

A
R

 R
U

R
A

L P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
-

Proposed R
evisions to 2020-2029 STIP/M

PO
 TIP Program

s

STIP/M
PO

 TIP M
odification #22-3

(February 2022)

74



MEMORANDUM 

TO: MPO Board Members 

FROM: 

DATE:  

Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director 

March 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Wilmington Multi-modal Transportation Center Phase 1B 

The property located at 525 North 4th Street (former Thomas Grocery Building) was purchased 
by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) with transportation funds for the 
Wilmington Multi-modal Transportation Center and it is required be used by a public agency for a 
transportation purpose. The property was deeded to the City of Wilmington in 2017 and the 
building is currently vacant. The Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(WMPO) identified an opportunity to utilize this building for dedicated office space and in 2019 
the City of Wilmington and WMPO Board allocated funding to the project. The rehabilitation and 
re-use of the historic building is being referred to as the Wilmington Multi-modal Transportation 
Center Phase 1B. Upon completion of the renovation, the building and property will be retained 
by the City. 

The City of Wilmington/Wilmington MPO completed the design for the upfit of this building in 
late 2021. The engineers’ construction cost estimate for the project was $2,497,127. The city held 
a bid opening on January 27, 2022. Two contractors bid on the project and the low bid was in the 
amount of $3,144,446 (including $38,000 for Alternates 1 and 2). The bid was $647,319 over the 
engineer’s estimate and outside the project budget.  

Staff reviewed several options including value engineering, project phasing, and removal of the 
board room to try to reduce the cost of the project. Staff was unable to develop an option that 
would meet the needs of the organization and settled on the request for additional funds. With the 
bid of $3,144,446 and general construction funding allocated to the project of $2,675,957 there is 
a significant shortfall. If there is support to provide the additional funding, the anticipated 
timeframe to secure these additional funds would be approximately six (6) months. Construction 
costs are anticipated to continue to increase during this period. Therefore, to be conservative and 
account for inflation, staff proposes a 30% increase ($943,334) on top of the current bid. In 
addition, staff recommends including a 15% contingency ($471,667), funding for design and 
contract administration ($88,000), funding for furniture ($80,000), and 5% anticipated North 

75



2 

Carolina Department of Transportation administration fees ($111,516). This would bring the total 
amount of additional funding required to $2,341,836. 

The use of Surface Transportation Block Grant - Direct Attributable funding provided by the 
Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization is 80% federal and requires a 20% 
local match. Additional funding from the WMPO in the amount of $1,873,469 would be required 
to move forward. Accordingly, the additional local match required from the City of Wilmington 
to complete the project would be $468,367. The City’s project budget (4TRMF0216) includes 
$136,781 in unallocated funding which can be utilized for a portion of this local match. An 
additional $331,586 would need to be appropriated to the Wilmington Multi-modal Facility 
Project. 

On March 15, 2022, the Wilmington City Council unanimously approved authorizing the City of 
Wilmington to apply to the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization for the 
additional Surface Transportation Block Grant Program - Direct Attributable Funds in the amount 
of $1,873,469 and providing a portion of the (20%) local match in the amount of $165,793. The 
remaining $165,793 was approved by the New Hanover County Board of Commissioners at their 
meeting on March 21, 2022. 

MPO staff requests the Board consider allocating the additional Direct Attributable funding 
needed to complete the project in the amount of $1,873,469. This will allow the City/MPO to 
proceed with the building renovation for dedicated MPO office space. 

76



Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Draft 2022 Legislative Agenda  

Transportation Funding 
The Wilmington Urban Area MPO supports prioritization and funding for local transportation 
and infrastructure projects and the need to explore new transportation and infrastructure 
revenue sources to address the growing needs of the state and the nation. Including, but not 
limited to road, bridges and highway projects, public transportation, ferry, bicycle and 
pedestrian infrastructure, beach nourishment, inlet and waterway maintenance, coastal storm 
damage reduction, port infrastructure, airports, etc. 

The Wilmington Urban Area MPO encourage the North Carolina Department of Transportation, 
North Carolina General Assembly, and Governor of North Carolina to explore and implement 
new funding mechanisms that could raise the funds necessary to accelerate much needed 
transportation projects. 

Transportation Project Priorities 
Due to NCDOT cash management issues many projects across the state and in our region were 
delayed in the STIP/MPO TIP. As a result of in increases in right of way and construction costs, 
the 2020-2029 State Transportation Improvement Program approximately $12B over-
programmed. The Wilmington Urban Area MPO supports the acceleration of the MPO’s top 
priorities for projects currently funded in the draft 2023-2032 State/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs. The Board’s transportation priorities are as follows: 

• Hampstead Bypass (R-3300)
• Military Cutoff Road/Eastwood Road Interchange (U-5710)
• Independence Boulevard Extension (U-4434)
• Martin Luther King Jr. Parkway/Kerr Avenue Interchange (U-3338C)
• Martin Luther King Jr. Parkway/Market Street/Eastwood Road Interchange (U-4902C)

The MPO Board also identified the replacement of the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge as their 
highest unfunded priority.  

Opposition to Transfer of State Road Maintenance 
The Wilmington Urban Area MPO respectfully and urgently requests the North Carolina General 
Assembly reject proposals which would transfer responsibility for large portions of the state’s 
road system to local governments and weaken or dismantle municipal Powell Bill Street 
maintenance funding. 

Limitation on City Requirements for Street Improvements Related to Schools 
SL 2017-57 included language related to street improvements for schools. The Wilmington Urban 
Area MPO is concerned that on non-state-maintained facilities where improvements related to 
schools are needed, the funding burden has fallen on the municipalities or the level of service on 
the roadways will be compromised. The Wilmington Urban Area MPO encourages the General 
Assembly to review this language and seek solutions to address this funding concern. 

Moped Legislation 
The Wilmington Urban Area MPO supports the North Carolina Department of Transportation’s 
policy recommendation of restricting mopeds on public roadways with posted speed limits of 45 
mph or greater. The MPO also encourages the North Carolina General Assembly to implement 

77



laws that regulate the use of mopeds in a manner that promotes the safety and welfare of the 
citizens and visitors of North Carolina and pursue education and clarity on existing regulations 
for mopeds, golf carts, and low-speed vehicles. 

Electric Scooter Legislation 
The Wilmington Urban Area MPO supports the use of electric scooters to provide an alternative 
mode of transportation so long as the scooters are used in a safe and responsible manner, do not 
create visual clutter, and do not block parking or ADA accessibility. The allowance and/or use of 
electric scooters should be subject to local government control through their adopted codes and 
ordinances. 

78



MEMORANDUM 
TO: 

FROM: 

DATE:  

MPO Board Members 

Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director 

March 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Draft 2022 Legislative Agenda Technical Coordinating Committee 
Suggestions/Requests 

The Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s Technical Coordinating 
Committee (TCC) held a meeting on March 16, 2022. During this meeting, the TCC discussed the 
Draft 2022 Legislative Agenda. Committee members made some suggestions/requests for MPO 
Board consideration. Below please find a summary of these suggestions/requests: 

Transportation Funding 

There was a suggestion to add safety and specifically break out safety with references to 
pedestrian safety, Vision Zero, and other safety initiatives. 

Transportation Project Priorities 

A request was made to add the South Front Street Widening (U-5729) as a top transportation 
priority project. This is being requested because this route is the designated truck route, due to the 
increase in freight congestion at the south gate and re-routing of trucks to the north gate. This 
project has been delayed multiple times and something needs to be done sooner rather than later. 

Overall Comment 

There was a suggestion to add more information that stresses growth. Many of the transportation 
needs have to do with growth in the region and this growth impacts new roads, road 
improvements, and maintenance. 

79



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA   
MPO 

March 2022 

PENDER COUNTY STREETS PLAN 
Project Description/Scope: In January, WSP, Pender County, and WMPO kicked off the development of 
the Pender County Streets Plan. The final plan will serve as an update to the 2016 Pender County 
Collector Streets Plan and is envisioned to be a more comprehensive technical document that integrates 
the recommendations of the Pender County Comprehensive Plan 2.0 with buy in and support from both 
the development community and citizens. The effort was funded as a special study in the WMPO’s 
adopted FY 21 UPWP, and the schedule for the development of the plan was approximately six months. 
This plan’s development included two public outreach and participation periods. The development of 
the plan was overseen by a steering committee comprised of stakeholders representing the county staff, 
the development community, NCDOT, and citizens, among others. WSP delivered the final plan 
document and recommendations in June, and the finished document product has been prepared by 
WMPO Staff. The Pender County Commissioners adopted the updated plan on October 18, 2021. The 
WMPO Board adopted the updated plan on November 17, 2021. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Launch of public interactive story map of plan recommendations in spring 2022

KURE BEACH BIYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN PLAN 
Project Description/Scope: The Town of Kure Beach, Alta, and the WMPO kicked off development of a 
bicycle and pedestrian plan for the Town of Kure Beach in September 2021. The plan is intended to aid 
the Town in the development and prioritization of its bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure needs. A kick-
off meeting to discuss the Town’s existing bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure and develop a timeline 
and strategy for public engagement was held in mid-October. A 3-day charrette activity was held 
November 30th through December 2nd. The charrette included two public meetings and stakeholder 
interviews. Approximately 150 members of the public attended the two public meetings, with an 
additional 436 responses providing input through the online interactive map tool. Alta completed an 
initial draft of the final plan and released to the Steering Committee for initial review in late February 
2022. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Release of draft plan for 30-day public review and comment period late winter/spring 2022
• Presentation of final plan to Kure Beach Town Council in spring 2022
• Presentation of final plan to WMPO Board in spring 2022

NAVASSA COLLECTOR STREET PLAN 
Project Description/Scope: In October, the Town of Navassa, the WMPO, and AECOM kicked off the 
development of the Navassa Collector Street Plan. Development of the plan, which will serve as an 
update to the 2004 Town of Navassa Collector Street Plan, is scheduled to last approximately eight 
months. The plan is funded as a special study in the WMPO’s adopted FY 22 UPWP. The updated 
collector street plan will serve as a tool for the Town to guide both public and private investments in 
shaping the transportation network as the Town continues to grow. The plan will provide a 
comprehensive network of streets to safely and efficiently access major roads and thoroughfares, 
outline collector street design recommendations, and identify opportunities for multimodal 
connectivity, preparing the Town to serve future developments while preserving its existing 
neighborhoods. The proposed collector street network will complement the Town’s future park and trail 
network as well as the Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan currently in development. Plan 

80



development is being guided by a Steering Committee and will incorporate public input received via a 
public survey and both in-person and virtual public meetings. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Public engagement survey launched the week of January 24th (open through mid-March)
• In-person Public Meeting planned for Wednesday, March 9th
• Virtual Public Meeting planned for Thursday, March 10th
• Development of draft plan (including implementation plan) in spring 2022
• Presentation to Navassa Town Council in late spring/early summer 2022
• Presentation to WMPO Board in late spring/early summer 2022

SITE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
Project Descriptions/Scope: The Wilmington Urban Area MPO assists with site development and 
Transportation Impact Analysis review for the MPO’s member jurisdictions. During the last month, 
staff has reviewed the following development proposals: 

• New Hanover County Formal Plan Reviews: 4 reviews
• New Hanover County Informal Plan Reviews: 2 reviews
• New Hanover Concept Reviews: 0 review
• Town of Leland Development Plan Reviews: reviews
• Town of Leland Formal Reviews: 7 reviews
• Town of Leland Informal Reviews: 2 reviews
• Town of Navassa Formal Plan Reviews: 0 review
• Town of Navassa Informal Reviews: 0 reviews
• Town of Navassa Concept Reviews: 0 review
• Town of Belville Formal Reviews: 0 reviews
• Town of Carolina Beach Formal Reviews: 0 reviews
• Town of Carolina Beach Informal Reviews: 0 reviews
• Brunswick County Formal Plan Reviews: 0 reviews
• Brunswick County Informal Plan Reviews: 0 reviews
• TIA Reviews: 42 total active (34 under review; 2 approved; 6 new):

New Hanover County  11 (2 new,  9 under review, 0 approved),  City of Wilmington 10, (2
new, 8 under review), Carolina Beach 1, (1 approved),  Town of Belville 0, Town of Leland 9,
(new,  8 under review, 1 approved), Town of Navassa 0,  Pender County  9 (1 new,  8 under
review, and Brunswick County 2, (1 new, 1 under review)

• Pender County Development Plan Formal Reviews:  6 reviews
• Pender County Informal Plan Reviews: 2 reviews
• Pender County Concept Reviews: 0 reviews
• City of Wilmington Formal Reviews:  39 reviews (10 new, 29 on-going)
• City of Wilmington Informal Reviews: 17 reviews (6 new, 11 on-going)
• City of Wilmington Concept Reviews: 0 reviews
• COW Project Releases 6

STBGP-DA/TASA-DA FY 2013 to 
Present STBGP-DA 

U-5534C - WRIGHTSVILLE AVENUE/GREENVILLE AVENUE TO HINTON AVENUE
Project Descriptions/Scope: The project is for construction of intersection re-alignment
improvements at the intersection of Wrightsville Avenue/Greenville Avenue and bike lanes and

81



sidewalks along Greenville Avenue from Wrightsville Avenue to Hinton Avenue. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• 90% design review completed in November 2021
• Requested Right-of-Way Authorization in January 2022
• Begin Right-of-Way Acquisition – May 2022
• Advertise for Bid – December 2022
• Begin Construction – May 2023
• Construction Complete- January 2024

U-5534D - TOWN OF LELAND - OLD FAYETTEVILLE ROAD MUP
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project is for design and construction of a ten foot (10') wide multi
use path, separate but adjacent to Old Fayetteville Road, beginning at or around the corner of the
Leland Town Hall Campus and ending at the driveway of the North Brunswick High School.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Construction commenced October 26, 2021
• Construction is complete; Town issued Notice of Acceptance
• FHWA established Final Voucher Date as of 11/8/2021; Town will retain records for a

minimum of three years
• Warranty Period will expire on November 8, 2022
• Town Staff is working with NCDOT to close out project and submit final construction

reimbursement
• Project completion extended to December 31, 2022

U-5534F – CITY OF WILMINGTON – PARK AVENUE MUP – PHASE II
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project is for the design and construction of an off-road multi-use
path between Audubon Boulevard and Kerr Avenue.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Begin Right-of-Way Acquisition – May 2022
• Advertise for Bid – December 2022
• Begin Construction – May 2023
• Construction Complete- January 2024

U-5534G –CITY OF WILMINGTON- HOOKER ROAD MULTI-USE PATH
Project Descriptions/Scope: The project consist of the construction of a 8' wide multi-use path
along Hooker Road from Wrightsville Avenue to Mallard Drive/Rose Ave intersection

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• 90% design review completed in November 2021
• Requested Right-of-Way Authorization in January 2022
• Begin Right-of-Way Acquisition – May 2022
• Advertise for Bid –December 2022
• Begin Construction –May 2023
• Construction Complete- January 2024

82



U-5534H –CITY OF WILMINGTON- HINTON AVE MULTI-USE PATH
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project consists of the construction of an 8' wide multi-use path
along Hinton Avenue from Park Avenue to Greenville Avenue.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• 90% design review completed in November 2021

• Requested Right-of-Way Authorization in January 2022
• Begin Right-of-Way Acquisition – May 2022
• Advertise for Bid –December 2022
• Begin Construction –May 2023
• Construction Complete- January 2024

U-5534I –TOWN OF LELAND- VILLAGE ROAD MULTI-USE PATH EXTENSION
Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of a 8 foot wide concrete path from the connection at
the Brunswick Center in Leland across the front of the library property, down Village Road, ending on
the western edge of the First Baptist Church property before the Sturgeon Creek Bridge.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Construction commenced February 8, 2021
• Supplemental Agreement 4 increased the total estimated project cost to $254,842
• Project on hold pending resolution of contracting issues with the consultant
• Project completion extended to June 30, 2022

U-5534J – TOWN OF LELAND- OLD FAYETTEVILLE LOOP ROAD PEDESTRIAN LOOP
Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of sidewalks in three locations: 1) The construction of
an 8 foot concrete sidewalk along Village Road from Town Hall Drive to the apartment complex and
widening the existing 5 foot sidewalk in front of the apartment complex to 8 feet. 2) The
construction of a 6 foot sidewalk along Town Hall Drive from Village Road NE to the sidewalk that
exists by the new Town Hall. 3) The construction of a 5 foot sidewalk along Old Fayetteville Road
from the existing sidewalk in front of the apartment complex to Village Road NE.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Construction commenced February 8, 2021
• Project on hold pending resolution of contracting issues with the consultant
• Project completion extended to June 30, 2022

U-5534K – TOWN OF LELAND- LELAND MIDDLE SCHOOL SIDEWALK
Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of 5 foot wide concrete sidewalk adjacent to Old
Fayetteville Road from Ricefield Branch Road to the US Hwy 74/76 overpass after Glendale Drive
with connections to Leland Middle School and the surrounding neighborhoods.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Construction commenced February 8, 2021
• Supplemental Agreement 4 increased the total estimated project cost to $327,788
• Project on hold pending resolution of contracting issues with the consultant
• Project completion extended to June 30, 2022

U-5534Q –CITY OF WILMINGTON- S. COLLEGE/HOLLY TREE CROSSWALKS
Project Description/Scope: The project will install sidewalk, ADA ramps, curb and gutter, markings

83



and traffic signal revisions required to install actuated pedestrian crossings of S. College Road and 
crossings on Holly Tree Road. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Received ROW Certification on October 22, 2021
• AECOM completed 100% Plans, Specs, and Estimate on November 3, 2021
• City sent 100% PS&E to NCDOT for review on November 8, 2021
• City sent City/NCDOT Comments on Plans and Estimate to AECOM on November 29, 2021
• NCDOT sent comments on Specs and Estimate to AECOM on January 18
• AECOM submitted revised 100% Plans, Specs, Estimate (PS&E) to City/NCDOT for final review

January 21, 2022
• Resubmit 100% PS&E to NCDOT for Construction Authorization January 31, 2022
• Final Approval on PS&E from NCDOT February 28, 2022

U-5534U – TOWN OF NAVASSA- NAVASSA PARK MULTI-USE PATH
Project Description/Scope: This project will construct bike lanes on both sides of Brooklyn
Street, a multi-use path connecting Brooklyn Street to the Navassa Park, and a multi-use path
through the Navassa Park forming a loop within the park.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Right Angle provided the 90% plans
• 90% plans and contract documents have been submitted to NCDOT
• CE Document has been approved
• Right-of-way authorization approved
• Construction fund authorization request will occur next federal fiscal year (FY 2022)

EB-6025- TOWN OF BELVILLE- RICE HOPE MULTI-USE PATH 
Project Description: The project consists of the construction of a multi-use path of eight feet (8’) 
wide located at the western side of NC 133 between Morecamble Blvd and Rice Hope Run. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• The Town has entered into a contract with Withers & Ravenel
• Kick-off meeting was held on November 6th
• A groundbreaking ceremony was held on November 20, 2020
• 90% plans are in development
• Project remains on track for a September 2022 LET

U-6234 MULTI-MODAL PHASE 1 B
Project Description/Scope: Rehabilitation of the historic structure located at 525 N 4th Street
for a transportation purpose

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Bids opened on January 27, 2022 and the WMPO is reviewing the submitted bids

U-6235 – City of Wilmington/New Hanover County – Signal Pre-emption Phase 2
Project Description/Scope: The project will install traffic pre-emption equipment at 50
locations throughout the City of Wilmington and New Hanover County and GPS equipment
on emergency response vehicles.

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Design contract approved May 5, 2021 by City Council: execution complete.

84



• Design kick-off meeting held July 23, 2021 with Wilmington Fire Department, Traffic
Engineering and Davenport Staff.

• Design started in October lasting through September 2022.

U-6039 – CAROLINA BEACH – ST. JOSEPH BIKE LANES
Project Description/Scope: Construct Bike Lanes along St. Joseph Avenue and Lewis Drive from
Lake Park Boulevard to Access Drive in Carolina Beach

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• NCDOT funding availability reopened January 25, 2021
• Town Council elected to move forward with the project and will upload information into EBS.
• As of May 3, 2021 funding amounts have been revised to reflect $457,777 STBGP- DA funds

and $114,445 local match to reflect approved funding
• Design revisions are under discussion with KHA
• Agreement executed with NCDOT on August 18, 2021
• Design discussions held with KHA on August 31, 2021, delivery schedule forthcoming

TASA-DA 

EB- 6026- TOWN OF BELVILLE- BELVILLE ELEMENTARY- MULTI-USE PATH 
Project Description: The project consists of the construction of a multi-use path of eight feet (8’) 
wide located along NC 133 connecting north and south entrances of Hawks Water Development to 
Belville Elementary School. 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• The Town has entered into a contract with Withers & Ravenel
• A Kick-off meeting was held on November 6th
• A groundbreaking ceremony was held on November 20, 2020
• 90% plans are in development
• Project remains on track for a September 2022 LET

EB-6027 – NEW HANOVER COUNTY -MIDDLE SOUND GREENWAY 
Project Description: Design only of the Middle Sound Greenway connection to Ogden Park 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Responded to DOT comments on 75% plans on November 16, 2021
• ROW acquisition continuing

EB-6028 ––CITY OF WILMINGTON- 21ST STREET/MARKET HAWK SIGNAL 
Project Description: Design and construction of a HAWK signal at the pedestrian crossing at 
Market Street and 21st Street 

Project Status and Next Steps: 
• 100% Final Plans uploaded to NCDOT EBS on February 8, 2022.
• Awaiting NCDOT review/approval.

EB-6029 – TOWN OF CAROLINA BEACH – CLARENDON AVENUE MULTI-USE PATH 
Project Description: Construction of the Clarendon Avenue multi-use path from 4th Street to Dow 
Road 

Project Status and Next Steps: 

85



• The Town is evaluating the scope for the project.
• Design modifications requested to include five-foot sidewalk and on street pavement

markings in lieu of multi-use path

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
Project Description/Scope: The TDM “Go Coast” program works to increase the use of alternative 
transportation by WMPO residents and decrease Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT).  The WMPO Board 
approved Cape Fear Change in Motion 2020, the short-range TDM Plan which will guide Go Coast 
initiatives from 2021 to 2025. This plan identifies seven short-range strategies to increase mobility 
options and reduce traffic in the WMPO region. These strategies are: Alternative Work Schedules, Bike 
Share Program, Carpool and Vanpool, Consulting for Telecommuting Opportunities, Fostering a Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Friendly Culture, Improved TDM-Focused Collaboration, and Personalized Commuter 
Plans.   

Go Coast current initiatives and project status: 

1. Bike Share
a. the WMPO Board approved the release of a new Request For Proposal to bring a bike share program
to the Wilmington area
b. The RFP has been written and will be released by the City of Wilmington on behalf of the WMPO
before the end of March 2022

2. Bicycle Suitability Map Update
b. The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee has approved a final draft with of the Wilmington
Area Bike Suitability Map
c. Staff is working to develop to finalize the format of this map for print and online use

3. Commute Friendly NC
a. Go Coast has been working with state TDM partners to develop the “Commute Friendly North
Carolina” program which designates organizations as “commuter friendly” if they offer commuter
benefits/resources to employees and affiliates
b. This program has been launched and can be found online at https://commutefriendlync.com/
c. This program recognizes organizations on a state level for their efforts to provide commuter benefits
and provides organizations an opportunity to directly connect with Go Coast

4. Telecommuting and Alternative Work Schedule Model Policy
a. The Go Coast committee has approved a model policy to guide area employers on how best to
implement telework and alternative work schedule policies for employees

5. River to Sea Bike Ride
a. Planning is underway for the 32nd Annual River to Sea Bike Ride
b. Saturday May 7th

6. Bike Month
a. Planning is underway for Go Coast Bike Month

7. The next Go Coast meeting is May 19, 2022

86

https://commutefriendlync.com/


1 

Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority 
Project Updates 

March 2022 

1. Service Enhancements Scheduled for July 2022
On Tuesday February 8, 2022, the Wave Transit Board of Directors voted unanimously to adopt a

proposal to expand the existing network, as well as investing in more frequent service! In

November 2021, a recommendation was presented for consideration with adoption of a finalized

draft slated for January 2022. The regularly scheduled January 27th meeting was recessed to

February 8th to continue discussion on the network redesign, following the announcement from

Federal Transportation Administration (FTA) on an additional $108 billion authorized for public

transportation under the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law. The new law will increase Wave Transit’s

federal formula funding by approximately $700,000 each year in over the next five years. Provided

this added information, the Board of Directors voted to advance a revised framework which would

result in increased frequencies on 30% of the fixed routes, enlarge Wave Transit’s service

footprint, and improve efficiencies. The draft proposal is as follows:

• Retain current urban core network with peripheral improvements

• Replace Routes 207 North and 301 Pleasure Island with an on-demand microtransit service

delivery model, which is responsive and serves a much larger geographic area

• Introduce 30-minute service frequencies on three routes, including Route 108 Market

Street, Route 201 Carolina Beach Road, and Route 205 Long Leaf Park

• Offer 60-minute continuous, uninterrupted frequencies for Route 107 College Rd. for better

consistency

• Revise Route 104 East offering transit service on Market Street east of College Rd. for the

first time, and shifting coverage of Gordon Road and North College Road to the flexible

microtransit service

• Interline Route 107 College Rd. and Route 201 Carolina Beach Rd. at Monkey Junction,

reducing transfers resulting in better customer service

• Implement a seasonal trolley schedule, reallocating resources to the most productive hours

The service enhancements will take effect at the beginning of July. Customers and members of the 

public have an opportunity to provide comment through a general survey offering. Responses can 

be submitted online at https://www.wavetransit.com or in-person at Forden and Padgett Stations. 

Additional information regarding the service improvements included under the draft framework 

can be obtained through the Authority’s website, at the two main transfer stations, or through the 

main office at (910) 343-0106.   

2. Wilmington Regional Microtransit Pilot Project - RideMICRO
The Authority entered into a regional agreement in May of 2021, to provide on-demand,
microtransit services within, and between, Brunswick County, New Hanover County, and Pender
County. The revised service offering provides more efficient and cost-effective public
transportation to locations under- or un-served by public transportation. The alternative mobility
option will result in decreased wait times for customers, affordable fare, which are equal to
existing fixed route fares, and finally, the availability of smartphone app technology for trip
reservations and fare payment.

87

https://www.wavetransit.com/


2 

Monday, October 11, 2021 marked the official launch of the program beginning with service to 
Zone 1 Northern Brunswick/Downtown Wilmington and Zone 2 Pender/Northeastern New 
Hanover County.  Service to Zone 3 Southern New Hanover/Pleasure Island was implemented 
December 1, 2021. Service to the fourth and final zone, Zone 4 Northern New Hanover County 
will go live April 2022. The three active zones contain a combined total of over 3,270 virtual stop 
locations. Please consult the following link to view virtual stops within each active zone: 
https://arcg.is/1KvyOS.      

The full technology suite for the RideMICRO program and weekday service hours expanded to 
7:00 am to 10:00 am and 12:00 to 7:30 pm on Monday, January 17, 2022. Customers are now 
able to book trips, pay fares, plan routes, identify the closest virtual stop, and track their vehicle 
in real time through the RideMICRO app. A multimodal trip planning feature was incorporated 
into the app on March 13, 2022, offering seamless planning across all Wave Transit transportation 
services. Wave Transit staff challenges you to RideMICRO!  

From program inception through February 28, 2022, there have been a total of 515 passenger 
trips, with increasing productivity since the implementation of services.  

NCDOT’s ConCPT and community grants fully funded the service at 100%. This is a 12-month pilot 
project, with options to extend pending availability of grant funds. The FY2023 application for a 
second year of support was submitted and final approval by NCDOT is currently pending.  

3. Update on Section 5310 Community Grant Offering
The Authority received responses from three community organization in response to the
publication of the FY2023 Section 5310 Community Grant offering. The respondents include,
Elderhaus Adult Daycare Services, New Hanover County Senior Resource Center (SRC), and Town
of Navassa. Elderhaus and the SRC are recipients of the current, FY2022 community grant awards
and have demonstrated need for continued support for next fiscal year.

The WaveConnect Advisory Group that oversees the community grant process will convene in 
March 2022 to review and score the applications and draft a recommendation for award. The 
recommendation will be presented to the WMPO and Authority’s Board of Directors for 
consideration and approval April 2022. 

88

https://arcg.is/1KvyOS


P
ro

je
ct M

an
age

r
C

o
n

tract Typ
e

TIP
D

e
scrip

tio
n

C
o

u
n

ty

U
tilitie

s M
o

ve

Fo
rw

ard

R
O

W
 M

o
ve

Fo
rw

ard
SA

P
 Le

t D
ate

R
ail D

ivisio
n

 
R

ail
P

-5
7

4
0

 A
W

ilm
in

gto
n

 R
ail R

eh
ab

ilitatio
n

, C
u

rve R
ealign

m
en

t an
d

 U
p

grad
e R

ail B
rid

ges
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
Y

Y
4

/1
/2

0
2

2

R
ail D

ivisio
n

 
R

ail 
P

-5
7

4
0

C
C

SX
 SE Lin

e In
stallatio

n
 o

f R
ailro

ad
 G

rad
e C

ro
ssin

g Sign
als an

d
 G

ates at V
ario

u
s A

t-G
rad

e C
ro

ssin
gs

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

Y
Y

6
/1

/2
0

2
2

Eric M
u

rray
D

P
O

C
U

-5
9

1
4

W
id

en
 N

C
 1

3
3

 fro
m

 U
S 1

7
/7

4
/7

6
 to

 O
ld

 R
iver R

d
B

ru
n

sw
ick

Y
Y

6
/2

/2
0

2
2

D
erek P

ielech
D

P
O

C
B

P
3

-R
0

0
4

 
B

ru
n

sw
ick 1

8
1

 o
ver Stu

rgeo
n

 C
reek o

n
 SR

 1
4

3
7

 (O
ld

 Fayetevill R
d

) (P
revio

u
sly 1

7
B

P
.3

.R
.8

4
)

B
ru

n
sw

ick
Y

Y
6

/2
3

/2
0

2
2

D
avid

 Leo
n

ard
D

P
O

C
W

-5
7

0
3

E
U

S 1
1

7
/N

C
 1

3
2

 (C
o

llege R
d

) sid
ew

alk b
etw

een
 R

an
d

all P
kw

y an
d

 N
 o

f U
n

iversiy D
rive

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

TB
D

8
/4

/2
0

2
2

Eric M
u

rray
D

P
O

C
W

-5
6

0
1

D
H

3
rd

 St an
d

 D
o

ck St In
tersectio

n
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
1

0
/2

1
/2

0
2

2

Trace H
o

w
ell

D
P

O
C

W
-5

7
0

3
R

N
C

 1
3

2
 (So

u
th

 C
o

llege R
d

) an
d

 B
raggs D

rive o
ffset lefts

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

9
/1

5
/2

0
2

2

D
avid

 Leo
n

ard
D

P
O

C
 

W
-5

8
0

3
B

In
stall R

u
m

b
le Strip

s o
n

 U
S 1

7
 B

etw
een

 N
ew

 H
an

o
ver/P

en
d

er C
o

u
n

ty Lin
e an

d
 M

ile P
o

st 1
9

.3
0

 in
 O

n
slo

w
 C

o
u

n
ty 

P
en

d
er &

 O
n

slo
w

 
1

0
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

Eric M
u

rray
D

P
O

C
W

-5
7

0
3

C
M

o
n

key Ju
n

ctio
n

 P
ed

estrain
 Im

p
ro

vem
en

ts
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
1

1
/1

7
/2

0
2

2

D
avid

 Leo
n

ard
D

P
O

C
W

-5
8

0
3

A

U
p

grad
e P

ed
estrian

 &
 Traffic Sign

als an
d

 R
evise M

ed
ian

 Islan
d

s at U
S 7

4
 (Eastw

o
o

d
 R

o
ad

) at U
S 1

7
 (M

ilitary C
u

to
ff R

o
ad

) an
d

 

U
S 7

4
 (Eastw

o
o

d
 R

o
ad

) 
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
1

/3
1

/2
0

2
3

R
ail D

ivisio
n

R
ail

P
-5

7
4

0
B

C
SX

 SE Lin
e Im

p
ro

vem
en

ts to
 H

w
y G

rad
e X

in
gs, C

lo
se &

 Im
p

ro
ve V

ario
u

s Exist. A
t-G

rad
e C

ro
ssin

gs
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
Y

Y
4

/2
8

/2
0

2
3

Lyd
ia

D
D

R
L

I-6
0

3
9

I-4
0

 P
avem

en
t reh

ab
 fro

m
 M

ilem
arker 4

2
0

 to
 N

C
 2

1
0

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver, P

en
d

er
6

/2
0

/2
0

2
3

K
rista K

im
m

el
D

D
R

L
U

-5
9

2
6

N
ew

 R
o

u
te fro

m
 2

3
rd

 St to
 2

6
th

 St 
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
Y

Y
1

2
/1

9
/2

0
2

3

B
rian

 H
ard

in
g

D
D

R
L

U
-6

2
0

2
W

id
en

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

d
 to

 4
 lan

es fro
m

 U
S 1

7
 M

arket St to
 I-4

0
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
6

/1
8

/2
0

2
4

Lyd
ia

D
P

O
C

I-6
0

3
6

I-1
4

0
 - U

S 1
7

 to
 N

o
rth

 o
f U

S 7
4

 p
avem

en
t reh

ab
B

ru
n

sw
ick

1
0

/1
7

/2
0

2
4

D
erek P

ielech
D

P
O

C

1
7

B
P

.3
.R

.9
3

   

B
P

3
-R

0
1

2
R

ep
lace B

rid
ge 2

0
8

 o
ver Stu

rgeo
n

 C
reek o

n
 SR

 1
4

7
2

 (V
illage R

o
ad

) in
 B

ru
n

sw
ick C

o
u

n
ty

B
ru

n
sw

ick
7

/1
/2

0
2

5

D
erek P

ielech
D

P
O

C
B

-5
6

5
3

P
en

d
er 1

4
 o

n
 N

C
 1

3
3

 o
ver Tu

rkey C
reek

P
en

d
er

1
/2

8
/2

0
2

6

Lyd
ia

D
D

R
L

I-6
0

3
7

I-1
4

0
 fro

m
 U

S 4
2

1
 to

 I-4
0

 p
avem

en
t an

d
 b

rid
ge reh

ab
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
2

/1
7

/2
0

2
6

M
ike B

ass
D

D
R

L
U

-5
7

1
0

U
S 7

4
 (Eastw

o
o

d
 R

d
) at U

S 1
7

 (M
ilitary C

u
to

ff R
d

)
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
9

/1
6

/2
0

2
5

Trace H
o

w
ell

D
D

R
L

U
-5

7
9

2
M

LK
 at C

o
llege

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

6
/1

6
/2

0
2

6

Trace H
o

w
ell

D
D

R
L

R
-3

3
0

0
A

H
am

p
stead

 B
yp

ass (U
S 1

7
 fro

m
 M

ilitary C
u

to
ff R

d
 to

 N
C

 2
1

0
)

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver/ P

en
d

er
Y

Y
9

/1
5

/2
0

2
6

B
rian

 H
ard

in
g

D
D

R
L

U
-5

9
5

4
N

C
 1

3
3

 at 2
3

rd
 St R

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

6
/1

5
/2

0
2

7

D
erek P

ielech
R

aleigh
B

R
-0

0
0

8
R

ep
lace B

rid
ge 7

 o
n

 U
S 1

7
 o

ver U
S 7

6
B

ru
n

sw
ick

9
/2

1
/2

0
2

7

Lyd
ia

D
P

O
C

I-6
0

3
7

I-1
4

0
 Fro

m
 U

S 4
2

1
 to

 I-4
0

. P
avem

en
t &

 B
rid

ge R
eh

ab
ilitatio

n
.

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver 

2
/1

5
/2

0
2

8

B
rian

 H
ard

in
g

D
D

R
L

U
-5

7
3

1
U

S 7
4

 at U
S 1

7
/U

S 4
2

1
 Flyo

ver
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
5

/1
6

/2
0

2
8

K
rista K

im
m

el
D

D
R

L
U

-4
4

3
4

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce B
o

u
levard

 Exten
sio

n
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
6

/2
0

/2
0

2
8

B
rian

 H
ard

in
g

D
D

R
L

U
-5

7
2

9
U

S 4
2

1
 C

aro
lin

a B
each

 R
d

 M
ed

ian
 w

ith
 in

tersectio
n

 im
p

ro
vem

en
t at Sh

ip
yard

 an
d

 U
S 4

2
1

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

7
/1

8
/2

0
2

8

Trace H
o

w
ell

D
D

R
L

U
-5

7
3

2
H

am
p

stead
 M

ed
ian

: U
S 1

7
 fro

m
 SR

 1
5

8
2

 (W
ash

in
gto

n
 A

cres R
d

) to
 V

ista Lan
e

P
en

d
er

9
/1

9
/2

0
2

8

Lyd
ia

D
P

O
C

I-6
0

3
8

I-1
4

0
 Fro

m
 U

S 4
2

1
 to

 U
S7

4
/7

6
. P

avem
en

t R
eh

ab
ilitatio

n
B

ru
n

sw
ick 

1
1

/1
6

/2
0

2
8

K
rista K

im
m

el
D

D
R

L
U

-3
3

3
8

C
K

err A
ve In

terch
an

ge at M
LK

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

1
2

/1
9

/2
0

2
8

K
rista K

im
m

el
D

D
R

L
U

-4
9

0
2

B
U

S 1
7

 B
u

s - M
arket St M

ed
ian

 - R
ailro

ad
 to

 M
LK

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver

1
2

/1
9

/2
0

2
8

K
rista K

im
m

el
D

D
R

L
U

-4
9

0
2

C
U

S 1
7

 B
u

s - M
arket St M

ed
ian

 &
 In

terch
an

ge
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
Y

6
/1

9
/2

0
2

9

Trace H
o

w
ell

D
D

R
L

U
-5

7
0

2
B

C
o

llege R
d

 A
ccess m

an
agem

en
t im

p
ro

vem
en

t fro
m

 C
aro

lin
a B

each
 R

d
 to

 Sh
ip

yard
 B

lvd
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
1

/1
5

/2
0

3
0

P
E W

o
rk C

o
n

tin
u

in
g

D
ate

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
:

3
/4

/2
0

2
2

P
O

:
W

M
P

O

C
o

n
tact:

C
aitlin

 M
arks

cm
m

arks@
n

cd
o

t.go
v

9
1

0
-3

4
1

-2
0

0
1

P
ro

je
cts in

 D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t

89

mailto:cmmarks@ncdot.gov


C
o

n
tract N

u
m

b
e

r
R

e
sid

e
n

t
TIP

/W
B

S/P
ro

gram
C

o
u

n
ty

D
escrip

tio
n

Estim
ated

 

C
o

m
p

letio
n

 

P
ercen

t 

C
o

m
p

lete

D
C

0
0

3
1

6
A

lex Stew
art

W
-5

6
0

1
D

H
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r
3

rd
 an

d
 D

o
ck St

 9
/1

3
/2

2
8

.0
4

%

D
C

0
0

2
4

9
A

lex Stew
art

B
-4

5
9

0
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r
B

rid
ge 2

9
 o

ve
r Sm

ith
 C

re
ek

O
ct-2

3
2

0
.5

0
%

D
C

0
0

3
0

9
D

an
iel Jo

n
es

4
9

4
0

4
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r
ILM

 Lan
d

scap
e Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t - A

vailab
le A

u
gu

st 1
D

ec-2
2

8
8

.5
8

%

D
C

0
0

3
0

0
D

an
iel Jo

n
es

R
-2

6
3

3
B

A
(L)

B
ru

n
sw

ick
N

avassa Lan
d

scap
e En

h
an

cem
en

t
D

ec-2
2

9
7

.6
7

%

C
2

0
3

9
8

0
A

lex Stew
art

U
-4

7
5

1
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r

M
ilitary C

u
to

ff R
d

 Exten
sio

n
 fro

m
 M

arket St to
 th

e
 W

ilm
in

gto
n

 B
yp

ass 

w
ith

 an
 in

terch
an

ge at th
e

 B
yp

ass 
M

ar-2
3

6
8

.1
5

%

C
2

0
4

3
3

1
A

lex Stew
art

1
5

B
P

R
.1

9
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r

B
an

ks C
h

an
n

el (#
2

1
, U

S 7
6

) gird
e

r re
p

air, clean
 an

d
 p

ain
t b

e
arin

gs, ep
o

xy 

cap
s

A
u

g-2
2

6
.3

8
%

TB
D

A
lex Stew

art
1

5
B

P
R

.2
6

N
e

w
 H

an
o

ve
r

C
ap

e Fe
ar (#

4
8

 I-1
4

0
 E) Sh

e
ar Stren

gth
en

TB
D

TB
D

D
C

0
0

2
5

4
Lyd

ia M
cK

eel
R

-5
7

8
3

C
/D

B
ru

n
sw

ick, D
u

p
lin

, N
e

w
 

H
an

o
ve

r, O
n

slo
w

, P
en

d
e

r, 

Sam
p

so
n

2
0

1
9

 TA
P

 C
u

rb
 R

am
p

M
ar-2

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%

C
2

0
4

3
1

9
A

lex Stew
art

U
-4

9
0

2
D

N
e

w
 H

an
o

ve
r

Su
p

erstre
et m

ed
ian

 o
n

 M
arket St (U

S 1
7

 B
U

S) fro
m

 M
arsh

 O
aks D

r to
 

Len
d

ire
 D

r
Sep

-2
3

5
4

.5
1

%

TB
D

A
lex Stew

art
1

5
B

P
R

.2
6

N
e

w
 H

an
o

ve
r

C
ap

e Fe
ar (#

4
9

, I-1
4

0
W

) Sh
ear Stren

gth
en

TB
D

TB
D

D
C

0
0

3
1

5
Lyd

ia M
cK

eel
5

1
2

1
5

.0
1

A
D

N
e

w
 H

an
o

ve
r

SR
 1

1
8

7
 (San

d
e

rs R
o

ad
) Sin

kh
o

le R
e

p
airs

D
ec-2

1
1

0
0

.0
0

%

D
C

0
0

3
3

1
Lyd

ia M
cK

eel 
R

-5
7

8
3

E &
 R

-5
7

8
3

F

B
ru

n
sw

ick, D
u

p
lin

, N
e

w
 

H
an

o
ve

r, O
n

slo
w

, P
en

d
e

r, 

Sam
p

so
n

D
ivisio

n
 W

id
e A

D
A

 C
u

rb
 R

am
p

 U
p

grad
e

s 
D

ec-2
2

0
.0

0
%

C
2

0
4

1
2

3
A

lex Stew
art 

R
-5

0
2

1
B

ru
n

sw
ick 

N
C

 2
1

1
 fro

m
 SR

 1
5

0
0

 (M
id

w
ay R

d
.) to

 N
C

 8
7

    

G
rad

in
g, D

rain
age, P

avin
g, Sign

als &
 Stru

ctu
re

s
M

ar-2
7

2
.4

9
%

C
2

0
4

5
5

3
D

an
iel W

au
gh

R
-3

3
0

0
B

P
e

n
d

er

N
C

 4
1

7
 (H

am
p

stead
 B

yp
ass) fro

m
 So

u
th

 o
f N

C
 2

1
0

 to
 N

o
rth

 o
f SR

 1
5

6
3

 

(Slo
o

p
 P

o
in

t R
o

ad
)

M
ar-2

7
0

.0
0

%

C
2

0
4

6
2

3
A

lex Stew
art 

B
-5

6
4

2
B

ru
n

sw
ick 

R
ep

lace
 B

rid
ge 6

5
 o

n
 N

C
 8

7
 O

ve
r H

o
o

d
 C

re
ek 

M
ar-2

3
0

.0
0

%

C
2

0
4

3
0

1
A

lex Stew
art 

1
5

B
P

R
.2

6
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r
N

e
w

 H
an

o
ve

r 4
8

 o
n

 I-4
0

E &
 I-4

0
 W

/N
E Su

b
stru

ctu
re

 R
ep

airs
N

o
v-2

2
0

.0
0

%

C
2

0
4

6
2

9
A

lex Stew
art 

B
-5

6
2

4
B

ru
n

sw
ick 

R
ep

lace
 B

rid
ge 5

7
 o

n
 N

C
 2

1
1

 O
ve

r Ju
n

ip
er C

re
ek 

D
ec-2

3
0

.0
0

%

P
ro

jects U
n

d
e

r C
o

n
stru

ctio
n

90



C
o

n
tract N

u
m

b
er

C
o

n
tract 

Y
ear

C
o

u
n

ty
M

ap
R

o
u

te
s

Estim
ate

d
 

C
o

m
p

letio
n

 
P

erce
n

t C
o

m
p

lete

D
C

0
0

3
1

1
2

0
2

2
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
0

M
arket Street, 3

rd
 Street, In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce B

lvd
, an

d
 p

atch
in

g o
n

 1
6

th
 &

 1
7

th
 Streets

Sep
-2

3
0

.0
0

%

D
C

0
0

3
1

8
2

0
2

1
P

e
n

d
er

0
P

e
n

d
er C

o
u

n
ty R

esu
rfacin

g
TB

D
1

2
.7

3
%

C
2

0
4

4
0

9
2

0
2

1
B

ru
n

sw
ick

0
1

 SEC
TIO

N
 O

F U
S-1

7
, U

S-7
4

/7
6

, A
N

D
 N

C
-1

3
0

; A
N

D
 1

1
 SEC

TIO
N

S O
F SEC

O
N

D
A

R
Y R

O
A

D
S

O
ct-2

2
1

5
.7

6
%

D
C

0
0

3
0

4
2

0
2

1
B

ru
n

sw
ick

0
U

S 1
7

, N
C

 9
0

4
 &

 V
A

R
IO

U
S SEC

O
N

D
A

R
Y R

D
S.

Ju
n

-2
2

0
.0

0
%

D
C

0
0

3
0

2
2

0
2

1
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
0

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver C

o
u

n
ty R

esu
rfacin

g
Jan

-2
2

8
9

.4
4

%

D
C

0
0

2
9

4
2

0
2

1
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
0

N
ew

 H
an

o
ver C

o
u

n
ty R

esu
rfacin

g 
Sep

-2
2

2
7

.8
4

%

D
C

0
0

3
2

5
2

0
2

2
B

ru
n

sw
ick 

7
B

ru
n

sw
ick R

esu
rfacin

g B
 (3

/1
6

/2
0

2
2

 A
vailab

ility D
ate)

A
p

r-2
3

0
.0

0
%

D
C

0
0

3
2

7
2

0
2

2
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver
3

0
N

ew
 H

an
o

ver C
o

u
n

ty R
esu

rfacin
g (1

/6
/2

0
2

2
 A

vailab
ilty D

ate)
A

p
r-2

3
0

.0
0

%

D
C

0
0

3
3

0
2

0
2

2
Sam

p
so

n
2

7
Sam

p
so

n
 C

o
u

n
ty R

esu
rfacin

g an
d

 P
reservatio

n
 (7

/6
/2

0
2

2
 A

vailab
ility D

ate)
Ju

n
-2

3
0

.0
0

%

In
te

ractive
 R

e
su

rfacin
g M

ap
 can

 b
e

 fo
u

n
d

 h
e

re
: h

ttp
s://n

cd
o

t.m
ap

s.arcgis.co
m

/ap
p

s/d
ash

b
o

ard
s/d

9
6

7
e

1
f1

8
d

1
c4

1
aca2

f2
6

0
fb

6
3

0
a4

c6
4

R
esu

rfacin
g

91



 STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROY COOPER J. ERIC BOYETTE
GOVERNOR   SECRETARY 

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING DIVISION 
1 SOUTH WILMINGTON STREET 
RALEIGH, NC 27699 

Telephone: 919 707 0980     
Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 

Website: ncdot.gov 

Location: 
1554 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 

        RALEIGH, NC 27699 

March 2022 

Nazia Sarder 
Transportation Engineer 
NCDOT Transportation Planning Division 
1 South Wilmington Street 
Raleigh, NC 27601 

MARCH TPD UPDATES WILMINGTON MPO 

MARCH 2022 

Brunswick County Model: The Brunswick County Model was completed in February of last 
year.   

Brunswick County Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP): The Brunswick County 
CTP just went through Peer Review, Management Review and Steering Committee Review. 
The comments will be reviewed and incorporated in the following weeks. The TPD engineers 
are also starting to set up public involvement sessions – both in person and virtual.  

Wilmington Model: The 2050 Travel Demand Model work started on 3/1/2022. The TDM is 
being developed for the next Wilmington MTP. The 2045 Travel Demand Model and 2045 
Wilmington MPO MTP was adopted on 11/18/2020 by the Wilmington MPO Board. 

N.C. Governor’s Highway Safety Program Grant Applications: The North Carolina 
Governor’s Highway Safety Program (NCGHSP) will soon be accepting grant applications 
for communities planning traffic safety programs. The grants will be for federal fiscal 2023, 
which is from Oct. 1, 2022 - Sept. 30, 2023. 

Updates on Coronavirus (COVID-19) in North Carolina: https://covid19.ncdhhs.gov/ 

Helpful Links: 
Click on links below to learn more: 
· NCDOT home page—ncdot.gov
· Real-Time Traffic—DriveNC.gov | North Carolina Traffic & Travel Information
· Report a pothole—NCDOT Contact Us Form
· NCDOT: State Transportation Improvement Program— ncdot.gov/sti
· Interactive Bicycle Routes Map—https://www.ncdot.gov/bikeped/ncbikeways/default.aspx

92

https://covid19.ncdhhs.gov/
https://www.ncdot.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://drivenc.gov/
https://www.ncdot.gov/contact/Pages/form.aspx?UnitName=pothole&sourceUrl=/contact/%20-%20Report%20a%20pothole%20?id=5f6fe58c1d942ab9107ccc03026280%E2%80%94Interactive%20Annual%20Average%20Daily%20Traffic%20Map
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/transportation/stip/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/bikeped/ncbikeways/default.aspx


· Links to all traffic count data information—Traffic Survey Group (ncdot.gov)
· NCDOT Interactive Traffic Volume Map—Interactive Traffic Volume map (ncdot.gov)
· Traffic Safety Data & Engineering—NCDOT: Traffic Safety Data & Engineering

NCDOT Statewide Plans:   
To learn more, click on the following links: 
· NC Moves 2050 Plan (or go to ncdot.gov/ncmoves)
· NCDOT Strategic Transportation Corridors (or go to ncdot.gov and search: Strategic
Transportation Corridors)
· NCDOT Comprehensive State Rail Plan (25-Year Vision) (or go to ncdot.gov and search:
rail plan)
· NC Statewide Multimodal Freight Plan (2015-2040) (or go to ncdot.gov and search: public
transportation plan)
· Great Trails State Plan (or go to ncdot.gov and search: Great Trails)
· Connecting North Carolinians to Opportunities (Public Transportation strategic Plan—2018)
(or go to ncdot.gov and search: public transportation plan)
· NCDOT Resilience Strategy Report (2021) (or go to ncdot.gov and search: resilience
strategy report)
· Statewide Pedestrian & Bicycle Plan (2013) (or go to ncdot.gov/bikeped/walkbikenc)

93

https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/State-Mapping/Pages/Traffic-Survey-Group.aspx
https://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=5f6fe58c1d90482ab9107ccc03026280
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/safety/traffic-safety/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/Transportation/nc-2050-plan/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/Transportation/strategic-corridors/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/divisions/rail/Pages/rail-plan.aspx
https://connect.ncdot.gov/projects/planning/Statewide-Freight-Plan/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/divisions/bike-ped/great-trails-state/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/divisions/public-transit/statewide-strategic-plan/Documents/december-2018-strategic-plan.pdf
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/Transportation/transportation-resilience/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/bikeped/walkbikenc/default.aspx

	3_30_2022_MPO-BoardAgendaFace-phone-rev
	WMPO Market Study Report
	WMPO Survey Report 2022
	TIP_Proposed_Amendment_22-1
	TIP_Proposed_Amendment_22-2
	2021_3_Resolution_Amednment STIP (22-1 and 22-2)
	TIP_Proposed_Modification_22-2_revised2
	2021-1_Resolution_modifying_STIP (22-2)
	Wilmington_DRAFT_PWP FY2023_2022-03-30
	FY 2023 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM
	WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	 Pender County Bike Ped Plan:
	The purpose of the proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian plan is to develop recommendations for bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure and policies in southern Pender County. The plan will guide Pender County staff, the WMPO, and NCDOT in future development ...
	To resume Transportation Demand Management efforts, the TDM Program will move forward using STBG-DA and 5303 funding and will continue to be performed by inhouse staff.  The TDM Program has been successful in promoting the Commuter Friendly Employer P...
	Anticipated DBE Contracting Opportunities for FY 2023
	RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FY 2023 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM FOR THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION
	RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION’S TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS


	Resolution supporting City of Wilmington's Application for the DPS Transportation Grant
	WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

	Resolution supporting Pender County's Application for the DPS Transportation Grant
	WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

	FY22 UPWP Amendment #3 - 2022-03-30
	Resolution_2022_UPWPAmend#3
	TIP_Proposed_Modification_22-3
	Wilmington Multi-modal Phase 1B_FINAL
	Wilmington MPO_Legislative Agenda_2022
	TCC 2022 Draft Legislative Agenda Comments
	Wilmington MPO March 2022
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534D - TOWN OF LELAND - OLD FAYETTEVILLE ROAD MUP
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534F – CITY OF WILMINGTON – PARK AVENUE MUP – PHASE II
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534G –CITY OF WILMINGTON- HOOKER ROAD MULTI-USE PATH
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534H –CITY OF WILMINGTON- HINTON AVE MULTI-USE PATH
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	• 90% design review completed in November 2021
	U-5534I –TOWN OF LELAND- VILLAGE ROAD MULTI-USE PATH EXTENSION
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534J – TOWN OF LELAND- OLD FAYETTEVILLE LOOP ROAD PEDESTRIAN LOOP
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534K – TOWN OF LELAND- LELAND MIDDLE SCHOOL SIDEWALK
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534Q –CITY OF WILMINGTON- S. COLLEGE/HOLLY TREE CROSSWALKS
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-5534U – TOWN OF NAVASSA- NAVASSA PARK MULTI-USE PATH
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	EB-6025- TOWN OF BELVILLE- RICE HOPE MULTI-USE PATH
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-6234 MULTI-MODAL PHASE 1 B
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-6235 – City of Wilmington/New Hanover County – Signal Pre-emption Phase 2
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	U-6039 – CAROLINA BEACH – ST. JOSEPH BIKE LANES
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	EB- 6026- TOWN OF BELVILLE- BELVILLE ELEMENTARY- MULTI-USE PATH
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	EB-6027 – NEW HANOVER COUNTY -MIDDLE SOUND GREENWAY
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	EB-6028 ––CITY OF WILMINGTON- 21ST STREET/MARKET HAWK SIGNAL
	Project Status and Next Steps:
	EB-6029 – TOWN OF CAROLINA BEACH – CLARENDON AVENUE MULTI-USE PATH
	Project Status and Next Steps:

	CFPTA TAC Update - March 2022
	WMPO March 2022
	March 2022 WMPO Report



